CONTRACT

between



and



July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2027

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE		6
ARTICLE 1 R	ECOGNITION	6
Section 1	Exclusive Recognition	6
Section 2	Exclusions	6
ARTICLE 2 D	EFINITIONS	6
ARTICLE 3 TI	ERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	7
Section 1	Length of Contract	7
Section 2	Reopening the Contract	7
Section 3	Renewal of Contract	7
Section 4	Conformity to Law	7
Section 5	Distribution of Contract	7
Section 6	Labor-Management Committee	7
Section 7	Policies and Procedures	8
ARTICLE 4 E	MPLOYER MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	8
Section 1	Authority to Act	8
Section 2	Limitation on Authority to Act	8
ARTICLE 5 U	NION RIGHTS	8
Section 1	Payroll Deductions – Union Membership	8
Section 2	Other Deductions	9
Section 3	Use of College Facilities by the Union and Representatives	9
Section 4	Bulletin Boards	9
Section 5	Mailings	9
Section 6	Exchange of Information	10
Section 7	Release Time (Union President or Designee(s))	10
ARTICLE 6 E	MPLOYEE'S RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES	.11
Section 1	Non-Discrimination	11
Section 2	Affirmative Action	11
Section 3	Personnel Records	11
Section 4	Political Activity	11
Section 5	Academic Freedom and Controversial Issues	11
Section 6	Intellectual Property	12
Section 7	Rights Regarding Discipline and Dismissal	12
Section 8	Payment	13
Section 9	Responsibilities of Employees	13
Section 10	Workday/Week	14
A. Full-	time Faculty	14
B. Adju	ınct Employees	18

	C. A	djunct Program Coordinators	20
	Section 11	Faculty Facilities	21
	Section 12	Use of Personal Vehicle	22
	Section 13	Hold Harmless	22
	Section 14	Individual Employee Contracts	22
	Section 15	Employee Involvement	23
	Section 16	Tenure	23
	Section 17	Safety and Health	28
	Section 18	Use of Security Cameras	29
4	RTICLE 7 LI	EAVES	29
	Section 1	Definition	29
	Section 2	Conditions	29
	Section 3	Salary Deductions	30
	Section 4	Sick Leave	30
	Section 5	Work Related Illness or Injury Leave	32
	Section 6	Family and Medical Leave	32
	Section 7	Leaves for Illness of Long Duration	33
	Section 8	Bereavement Leave	34
	Section 9	Emergency and Hardship Leave	34
	Section 10	Personal Convenience Leave	34
	Section 11	Military Reserve/National Guard Active Training Duty	34
	Section 12	Civil Duty	35
	Section 13	Professional Development Leave	35
	Section 14	Uniformed Service Shared Leave Pool	36
	Section 15	Domestic Violence Leave	36
	Section 16	Faith or Conscience Holidays	36
4	RTICLE 8 PI	ROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION	36
	Section 1	Professional Development	36
	Section 2	Evaluation - Overview	37
	Section 3	Criteria for Evaluation	37
	Section 4	Implementation	37
	Section 5	Faculty Evaluation of Immediate Supervisor	38
	Section 6	Disputes	38
	Section 7	Performance Improvement Plans	38
4	RTICLE 9 PI	ROFESSIONAL TECHNICAL CERTIFICATION	39
4	RTICLE 10 I	NSTRUCTION	39
	Section 1	Classroom Management	39
	Section 2	Grading Practices	40

Section 3	Instructional Aides	40
Section 4	Class Size	40
Section 5	Student Testing	40
Section 6	FERPA	40
ARTICLE 11	ASSIGNMENTS AND REASSIGNMENTS	40
Section 1	Assignments	40
Section 2	Reassignments	41
Section 3	Compensation for Canceled Classes	41
ARTICLE 12	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	41
Section 1	Purpose	41
Section 2	General Provisions	41
Section 3	Grievance Steps	43
ARTICLE 13 I	PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION	46
Section 1	Basic Salaries (Full-time Employees)	46
Section 2	Adjunct Employees and Adjunct Salaries	46
Section 3	Degree Stipends	47
Section 4	Health and Welfare Benefits	47
Section 5	Early Retirement Notification	48
Section 6	Compensation Improvement	48
Section 7	Salary Overpayment Recovery	49
Section 8	Salary Correction	49
Section 9	Additional Compensation	49
Section 10	Substitutes	50
Section 11	Multi-language Stipend	50
Section 12	I-BEST Instruction	50
ARTICLE 14 I	REDUCTION IN WORK FORCE	51
Section 1	Reduction in Work Force Defined	51
Section 2	Notification	51
Section 3	Procedure	51
Section 4	Right to Appeal	51
Section 5	Sufficient Cause	51
Section 6	Implementation	52
Section 7	Return from Lay-off	52
ARTICLE 15 I	NO STRIKE PLEDGE	52
ARTICLE 16 I	MAINTENANCE OF STANDARDS	52
ARTICLE 17	CONCLUSION	52
APPENDIX A S	alary Schedules	54

APPENDIX B	Calendars	56
APPENDIX C	RENTON TECHNICAL COLLEGE CREDIT AND LEARNING INCENTIVE	'E PROGRAM59
APPENDIX D	LIST OF PROGRAMS	60
APPENDIX E	DISMISSAL	61
Section 1	Employee Categories Covered	61
Section 2	Sufficient Cause for Dismissal of an Employee	61
Section 3	Composition of the Dismissal Review Committee	61
Section 4	Preliminary Proceedings	62
Section 5	Formal Procedures Relating to Dismissal of an Employee	62
Section 6	Procedural Rights	62
Section 7	Conduct of Formal Hearing	62
Section 8	Suspension	64
Section 9	Publicity	64
Skills Standa	ards/Faculty Evaluations MOU	66
Signature Pa	ge	67

PREAMBLE

This collective bargaining contract constitutes an agreement by and between the Board of Trustees of Renton Technical College (hereinafter the "College") and the faculty employees represented by the Renton Federation of Teachers (hereinafter the "Union") and in accordance with <u>Chapter 28B.50</u> and 28B.52 RCW.

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

Section 1 Exclusive Recognition

The College recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative of all full-time and adjunct faculty, regardless of teaching percentage, of the College.

Section 2 Exclusions

Excluded from the bargaining unit are the president, administrative officers, confidential, supervisory and non-supervisory educational employees, classified employees and non-credit teaching employees of the College program.

ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS

- A. "Union" means Renton Federation of Teachers, Local 39l4, AFT Washington/AFT/AFL-CIO.
- B. "Board" means the Board of Trustees of the Renton Technical College.
- C. "Employee(s)" shall mean any faculty employee(s) at Renton Technical College, excluding administrative, confidential and supervisory educational employees and non-supervisory educational employees employed in the College program and non-faculty employees. "Employee" is further defined as either "Full-time" or "Adjunct" as noted in ARTICLE 6, Sections 10. A. and B.
- D. "Contract" means this contract between the Board and the Union.
- E. "Day" means the scheduled workdays of the employee (M-F).
- F. "College" means the Renton Technical College.
- G. "Employee Contract," "Individual Contract," "Employment Contract" means the individual contract signed between an individual employee and the College.
- H. "Extra Days" means days assigned for work in excess of the number of days negotiated for the basic instructor contract.
- I. "Faculty Member" means any certificated employee of the College hired to either teach or provide counseling services or professional librarianship. (Also known as, "employee").
- J. "PERC" is the Public Employment Relations Commission.
- K. "College President" shall mean the chief administrative officer of the College or their designee.
- L. "Union President" shall mean the president of the Renton Federation of Teachers, Local 3914 or their designee.
- M. "Program" refers to a full-time preparatory program and instructional professional service as listed in Appendix D.
- N. "Skill Standards" means the Skill Standards for Professional-Technical College Instructors and Customized Trainers, (Olympia, WA: Washington State Board for Community and Technical Colleges, 2000) as it now exists or is hereafter revised.

O. "Domestic Partner" shall be defined by the Washington State Health Care Authority of the Public Employees Benefits Board as it now exists or is hereafter revised.

ARTICLE 3

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

Section 1 Length of Contract

This contract and the provisions contained therein shall remain in effect from the date of ratification by the Union and the College until June 30, 2027, unless provided for otherwise in the contract and constitute the entire agreement between the parties, concluding collective bargaining for its term.

Section 2 Reopening the Contract

- A. Both parties agree to review this contract annually. Specific section(s) of this contract may be reopened during its effective term by mutual consent.
- B. All contract modifications will be in conformance with the state legislative actions and the attending WACs and if found not in conformance by government regulatory agencies or a court of law the provisions in question shall be deemed invalid and proper modifications and necessary adjustments shall be made to bring the College into conformance. Also, collective bargaining may be initiated at the request of either party to reflect the adjustments that have been necessary to bring the College into compliance with the law.
- C. The College agrees to reopen <u>Article 13</u>, Professional Compensation, annually to review faculty salary (adjunct and full time).

Section 3 Renewal of Contract

For the purpose of renewing this contract upon its termination, the Union will submit to the College its proposals for a successor contract, in a timely manner.

Section 4 Conformity to Law

This contract shall be governed and construed according to the constitution and laws of the United States and the State of Washington. If any provisions of the contract shall be found to be contrary to the law, such provisions or their application shall have effect only to the extent permitted by law and all other provisions or application of this contract shall continue in full force.

Section 5 Distribution of Contract

The College will provide an electronic link with the following information to all new employees within ten days of employment:

- A. The current RFT contract.
- B. A one-page information sheet with information about RFT prepared by the Union and approved by the administration.
- C. A dues deduction form, prepared by the Union.

The College will also provide an electronic link of newly ratified contracts to all employees within ten days after the contract has been signed.

Section 6 Labor-Management Committee

The College and the Union support the goal of a constructive and cooperative relationship. To promote and foster such a relationship and ongoing communication, the College and the Union agree to establish a joint Labor-Management Committee.

- A. <u>Purpose</u>. The purpose of the Labor-Management Committee will be to review administration of the contract, changes to applicable law, legislative updates, resolve workplace concerns and/or organizational change. The committee is not to be used as a substitute for the existing grievance procedure and shall not be used to renegotiate provisions of this Agreement.
- B. The committee will not discuss concerns which have not been addressed through established lines of authority. Such matters will be referred to the proper administrator or governance council for action.
- C. <u>Membership</u>. The Labor-Management Committee will consist of three union representatives appointed by the union and three management representatives appointed by management. The committee may invite other members of the campus community to participate as needed.
- D. <u>Meetings</u>. The Labor-Management Committee will meet once each quarter or as needed. The committee will elect a chair at its fall quarter meeting. Agenda items will be submitted to the Committee chair.
- E. <u>Communication</u>. Written documentation of the Labor-Management Committee meetings shall include identification of each topic that is discussed and any decisions or recommendations that were made regarding them. Contents of this written documentation will be approved by the committee membership and shared with union membership and management as appropriate.

Section 7 Policies and Procedures

Policies and procedures that are established that have instructional impact or impact the College as a whole will be provided to the Union for its information, or to satisfy a collective bargaining obligation (not approval), ten (10) days prior to implementation. EXCEPTIONS to this provision would be emergency situations which require immediate procedural action as well as legally mandated procedural action.

ARTICLE 4 EMPLOYER MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Section 1 Authority to Act

The Union recognizes that the Board and College President and their designees reserve and retain all powers, full rights, authority and discretion to direct, supervise and manage the programs and employees of the College and to discharge their duties, responsibilities and requirements conferred upon and vested in them by law.

Section 2 Limitation on Authority to Act

The exercise of the legally authorized rights, authorities, duties and responsibilities of the Board and the College President and their designees and the adoption of policies under relevant or applicable statutes shall be limited only by specific and expressed terms of this contract.

ARTICLE 5 UNION RIGHTS

Section 1 Payroll Deductions – Union Membership

Upon receipt of an employee Automatic Payroll Authorization form from the Union, the College will make the appropriate payroll deductions as certified by the president of the Union and transmit the monthly dues to the Union. For any change in the rate of membership dues to employee payroll deductions, the Union will so give thirty (30) calendar days' written notice to Payroll and to Human Resources. The Union agrees to indemnify the College for any unauthorized dues deduction made by the College that was certified by the Union.

Section 2 Other Deductions

- A. The College shall continue the current plans, which includes plans offered by the Health Care Authority, payroll savings for approved credit unions, or the Washington State Combined Fund and make the state's deferred compensation programs available to employees for the purchase of tax-sheltered annuities. The College will provide application forms to participate, deduct the amount from the employee's salary, and make appropriate remittance for the tax-sheltered annuity purchased.
- B. The College shall, upon receipt of written authorization from an employee, deduct from the employee's salary and make appropriate remittance for Committee on Political Education (COPE) fund contributions.

Section 3 Use of College Facilities by the Union and Representatives

The College agrees that the Union may place filing cabinets and a computer desk in the College staff lounge.

The College agrees to allow the Union and its representative's use of and access to the College buildings and/or employees (without rent or other fiscal obligations in terms of building use) subject to the following conditions:

- A. Such building use does not include the free use of equipment and supplies, or abnormal custodial costs.
- B. Such use or access does not interfere with previously scheduled staff activities or other assigned duties of employees.
- C. Union activities or representatives' access and employee contact do not interfere with the College, building, or classroom educational program.
- D. Building use for meetings is properly scheduled with the appropriate supervisory personnel.
- E. Union Executive Board, committee, or membership meetings will not be held during employee's contracted work hours.
- F. Union representative(s) contacting employees identify themselves to Human Resources or the President's office upon arrival.
- G. The College President or designee may approve the granting of a special deviation from any or a combination of any of the above conditions.

Section 4 Bulletin Boards

The Union shall have the exclusive right to post notices of activities and matters of Union concern on designated areas of bulletin boards to be provided in the staff lounge. Copies of all materials posted shall be sent to the President of the College. The Union further agrees that every attempt will be made by the Union and representatives to assure that such materials posted will be responsible, professional and reflect general standards of good taste.

Section 5 Mailings

The Union shall have the right to use the College's employee mailboxes, physical or electronic, for the distribution of its communications.

Copies of any Union mailing using the College employee mailboxes shall first be sent to the President of the College. The Union agrees to make every attempt to assure that Union communication materials that are placed in employee mailboxes will be responsible and will reflect general standards of good taste. If the President of the College has a serious question as to the responsibility and general standards of good taste of such mailings as submitted, they will endeavor to mutually resolve such questions. Pending resolution, the mailing in question will be returned to the Union by the College.

Section 6 Exchange of Information

- A. The College will furnish to the Union, upon request, any and all information it normally prepares regarding the College's operation(s) and which is established as necessary for the Union in carrying out its responsibilities. Such information shall be delivered as expeditiously as possible.
 - The College agrees to furnish the Union with information which may be necessary for the Union to process grievance(s) on behalf of employee(s).
- B. The College shall provide the Union, by the 15th of the second month of each quarter, the normally prepared monthly updated list of employees employed the previous month, their assignments including department, rate of pay, and credits contracted.
- C. There shall be distributed, in a timely manner, to the Union copies of the Board agenda that will include approved minutes and other appropriate data prior to each meeting of the Board.
- D. A Union representative shall have the opportunity to attend all open meetings. The Union shall be allowed to enter any items on any agenda consistent with the procedures of the Board and shall be allowed to speak on any question on any agenda.
- E. The College will provide the Union representative an opportunity to meet with new full-time faculty for thirty (30) minutes within the first month of employment, and quarterly for new adjunct faculty for new employee orientation.

Section 7 Release Time (Union President or Designee(s))

Release time will be available in accordance with the following provisions:

- A. Time to handle grievances should a situation develop during class time which needs immediate attention will be granted when properly requested and appropriate class coverage can be arranged by the employee(s) involved.
- B. In recognition of the need for the Union President and/or the Vice President of the local to have time during the regular business hours to perform duties associated with these offices, the College shall consider the following leave options to be granted to the Union President and/or the Vice President: up to one-half (½) day per week, or three (3) hours per week, or a total for the Union President and the Vice President of eighteen (18) days per school year, to attend to these duties. The granting of one of the options by the College will be based on its determination that the Union President's work schedule can be adjusted and that adequate provisions can be made to ensure the continuation of quality instruction.
 - The Union agrees to reimburse the College at a rate equal to the prorated portion of the actual salary of the Union President.
- C. If the Union President or designee(s) have a specific official written request from a Washington state legislative committee and/or a governmental agency to give information to a committee meeting of the legislature, they will be granted release time or one (1) day only. The request for such release time will be submitted to Human Resources for approval and will include a copy of the official written request from the legislative committee or governmental agency. In the event the scheduled committee meeting or hearing, which is involved in the request, is postponed or extended, upon written request, an additional day(s) release time may be approved.
- D. Renton Technical College allotted official delegates will be released to attend the AFT National Convention/Conferences without loss of pay. The College will grant up to a maximum of ten (10) days or eighty (80) hours of release time to attend this convention or training session. For such release time, where a substitute is provided, the Union will reimburse the College for the substitute pay. No travel reimbursement will be provided for employees involved in travel on Union business.

ARTICLE 6

EMPLOYEE'S RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 1 Non-Discrimination

Employees shall be entitled to full rights of citizenship. There shall be no discipline or discrimination by the College or the Union with respect to the employment of any person because of such person's age, gender, gender identity, marital status, race, creed, color, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, pregnancy, domicile, political affiliation, activity or lack thereof, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or the presence or perception of presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability, unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification.

Section 2 Affirmative Action

The Union and College recognize the requirements of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the College has an Affirmative Action program which meets those requirements. The College and Union mutually agree to support the Affirmative Action program.

Section 3 Personnel Records

Official Personnel File Only one (1) official personnel file for each employee or former employee shall be maintained by the College, and that file shall be located in Human Resources. The official personnel file shall contain relevant information including but not limited to original employee application, transcripts, letters of recommendation, recognition, and discipline, and official evaluation reports.

Faculty members shall have the right to review material in their official personnel file in the presence of a member of Human Resources during regular business hours, except for materials that were obtained upon initial employment through assurances of confidentiality to a third party.

Upon request, copies of any document in the official personnel file shall be provided to the employee. The College may assess a reasonable charge for this service.

Any written communication either critical or commendatory shall be shared with the employee prior to inclusion in the official personnel file. The employee shall be given the opportunity to sign or initial the document acknowledging its entry. The employee shall have the right to respond to any written communication which is to be included in the employee's official personnel file.

A separate file for processed grievance(s) shall be kept apart from the employee's official personnel file. No reports on grievance(s) shall be added to the employee's official personnel file.

Working Files Working personnel files will be prepared and maintained by the appropriate supervisor under whom the individual is currently assigned. These files are considered confidential and are only open to the employee and their supervisor(s).

Section 4 Political Activity

The exercise of rights consistent with the Statutes and the Constitution of the State of Washington and the Constitution of the United States, shall not be grounds for disciplining or discriminating against employees.

It is appropriate for employees to exercise full political rights and responsibilities outside contracted hours and without using state resources. Such rights include, but are not limited to, voting, discussing political issues, campaigning for candidates, and running for public office. Employees seeking election to, or having been elected or appointed to public office shall receive, upon request, a leave of absence with full rights to reinstatement.

Section 5 Academic Freedom and Controversial Issues

Faculty shall be free to select and present instructional course content and materials which are pertinent to the subject they teach, within the outlines or approved appropriate course content, specialized accrediting agencies, state/federal licensing departments and within the instructional program.

Faculty shall be free to express their personal opinions on all matters relevant to the course content and appropriate to the subject and levels taught provided that when this personal opinion is stated the class is so informed. The presentation and discussion of controversial issues should be on an informative basis and the students should have the opportunity to find, collect, and assemble materials on the subject; to interpret the data without prejudice; to reconsider assumptions and to reach their own conclusions. The right to teach controversial issues carries with it the responsibility to explore the various sides and aspects of an issue utilizing suitable materials that are available. All facts of controversial issues shall be presented in a scholarly and objective manner within the limits of appropriate discretion and propriety.

Section 6 Intellectual Property

The College and the Union have a mutual interest in fostering and encouraging instructional creativity. In light of this mutual interest, it is important to recognize faculty ownership of their independent ideas and works. Works that are eligible for copyright include but are not limited to books, articles, dramatic and musical compositions, poetry, instructional materials (e.g. syllabi, lectures, student exercises, and tests), fictional and non-fictional narratives, analyses, works of art and design, photographs, films, video and audio recordings, computer software, architectural and engineering drawings, and choreographic works and pictorial or graphic works fixed in any tangible medium or expression. Copyright rights include all the rights recognized under Section 106 of the Copyright Act of 1976, as amended.

- A. The ownership of any materials, processes, inventions or other works developed solely by a faculty member's individual effort and expense shall vest in the faculty member and be copyrighted or patented, if at all, in their name. The copyrights to works created by a faculty member as independent efforts shall be owned by him or her, even if those works are created voluntarily in connection with courses taught or other duties related to the faculty member's job duties. Independent efforts shall mean that the ideas for the work came from the faculty member and that the work was not made with additional support from the college beyond that normally provided in the performance of the member's assigned duties. Faculty may grant the College a non-exclusive license to use the works they own in a manner prescribed by the copyright owner. Works created by faculty do not necessarily reflect the views or opinions of the College.
- B. Works, materials, processes, inventions or other works that are specifically commissioned and paid for by the College, or at the College expense, are works for hire and fall under the 1976 Copyright Act shall vest in the college and be copyrighted or patented, if at all, in its name. The copyright to such works shall be owned by the College. The College may assign or license works for which it owns the copyright without the permission or consent of the hired creator of the work.
- C. When materials, processes, inventions or other works are produced by a faculty member with College support, using significant personnel, time, facilities or other College resources, the ownership of the materials, processes, inventions or other works shall vest in (and may be copyrighted or patented, if at all) the person designated by written agreement between the parties entered into prior to the production. In the event no written agreement is entered into, the ownership shall vest in the College.
- D. If a departing faculty member owns the copyright to a work that the College desires to continue using, the College shall pay the copyright owner the market-value price for obtaining the non-exclusive right of usage, or an otherwise mutually-agreed upon price.

Section 7 Rights Regarding Discipline and Dismissal

It is agreed that employees have the following rights relative to discipline:

- A. The right to know in advance the nature of any scheduled formal meeting or hearing involving discipline. Under emergency situations a written notice will be unnecessary.
- B. The right to have a witness and/or Union representative present at any disciplinary meeting or any meeting the employee reasonably believes will be disciplinary in nature. If the employee desires to have a witness and needs a delay in order to obtain one, the meeting may be delayed for up to five (5) days until said witness is available. The meeting may be rescheduled for a time within five (5) days by the administrator and it shall be the responsibility of the employee to have their witness present.

- C. The right to have any formal disciplinary charges made in writing.
- D. The right to have all documents and papers that will be referred to regarding any formal disciplinary charges made available to the employee, upon request, and prior to any official disciplinary hearing(s).
- E. The right to contest any evidence presented in an official disciplinary meeting.
- F. The right to utilize the contract grievance procedure in any disciplinary action, EXCEPT in cases of dismissal, non-renewal, and adverse effect.
- G. The right to have the College follow a course of progressive discipline from a verbal warning(s) on to more serious action up to and including dismissal. However, under special circumstances or where the situation is of an extreme nature demanding immediate action will be unnecessary.
- H. The right to not be dismissed or have contract status adversely affected EXCEPT for cause and dealt with in accordance with Appendix E of this contract and appropriate state statutory provisions covering such actions.

Section 8 Payment

- A. Each full-time employee shall have the right annually to choose one of the following payment methods, provided that the method is chosen upon signing of their annual contract or the signing of the initial contract upon hire, and further provided that, if no election is made, the method used the previous year will be used:
 - Balloon Payment Semi-monthly payments, commencing as described in <u>Article 6, Section 8. B.</u> below, equal to one twenty-fourth (1/24th) of the contracted salary. The final payment will be made on July 10th and will include payment of the balance of the contract.
 - 2. Equal Installments Equal semi-monthly payments, commencing as described in Article 6, Section 8.B., ending July 10th. Each check shall contain an equal portion of the contracted salary. This method could result in the gross semi-monthly payments fluctuating from year to year depending upon the number of payments required by the academic year calendar.
 - 3. Annual Contract Librarians and Counselors receive an annual contract which includes the summer term and the following academic year. Employees will be paid in twenty-four (24) semi-monthly installments beginning July 25 and ending July 10. Each check shall contain one twenty-fourth (1/24) of the contracted salary.
- B. Pay days will be on the 10th and the 25th of each month per RCW 42.16.010 and WAC 82-50-021. If the academic year calendar starts prior to September 16, the first pay date will be September 25. If the calendar starts on September 16 or later, the first pay date will be October 10
- C. Adjunct employees will be paid for teaching and all related services, such as, but not limited to, preparation, grading, and record keeping in equal semi-monthly installments for the quarter. If the adjunct faculty assignment begins prior to the sixteenth (16) of the month, the first pay date will be on the twenty-fifth (25) of that month. If the assignment begins on the sixteenth (16) of the month or later, the first pay date will be the tenth (10) of the following month.
- D. Any regularly scheduled employee wishing to elect direct electronic payroll deposit may do so by notifying payroll and submitting appropriate paperwork.

Section 9 Responsibilities of Employees

Responsibilities related to instruction are:

- A. It shall be the responsibility of the instructor to follow the prescribed courses of study and to enforce the rules and regulations of the College, and the State Board for Community and Technical Colleges in maintaining and rendering the appropriate records and reports.
- B. Instructors shall have the right, and it shall be their duty, to direct and control within reasonable limits the studies of their students, taking into due consideration individual differences among

- students and provided that all students shall receive instruction in such prescribed courses of study as are required by law and regulations.
- C. Instructors shall be responsible for the evaluation of each student's educational growth and development and for making periodic reports to the students and to the designated administration or administrator.
- D. Instructors are required to prepare daily for their duties, preparation to include attendance at instructors' meetings and such other professional work contributing to efficient College service as may be required by the supervisor, the College President, or the Board.
- E. Certification under the standards specified in <u>WAC 131-16-070</u> through <u>131-16-094</u> is a condition of continued employment for all full time professional-technical and adjunct faculty that meet the criteria under WAC.
- F. Instructors shall maintain a record in the learning management system of scores earned for papers, projects, examinations, quizzes, and other assignments submitted by students infulfillment of course or program requirements. The record shall be submitted to the supervising dean no later than five (5) business days following the end of the quarter.
- G. The College will provide training on state and federal regulatory requirements to all faculty. It is the responsibility of all faculty to stay current with all regulatory requirements related to their duties.

Section 10 Workday/Week

A. Full-time Faculty

1. Full-time classroom employees are annually contracted for one hundred seventy-eight (178) days to perform primary and professional responsibilities, excluding summer quarter. Librarians and counselors generally receive a two hundred six (206) day annual contract, including summer quarter. Full-time faculty work consists of activities that support both the primary instructional functions and professional functions listed below for a forty (40) hour work week (not including a regular, daily meal break). If assigned teaching duties, it is the instructor's responsibility to provide their assigned students instruction that meets the designated credit load and instructional hours.

2. Workload Framework

Each full-time faculty member is contracted for 40 hours weekly, which includes primary faculty assignments. It is further understood that faculty must complete a variety of professional responsibilities if the College is to achieve its objectives.

In the table shown below, primary faculty assignments are reflected in quarterly and annual credit loads (with the exception of librarians and counselors where assignments are expressed in weekly hours). Variation in quarterly load is acceptable provided that annual credit loads fall within these expectations. If annual credit loads will not meet expectations, faculty shall work with their supervisors to determine appropriate additional responsibilities.

	PRIMARY and PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES	TOTAL WEEKLY HOURS
Prof Tech and CCP	15-18 credits quarterly, or 45-54 credits annually Additional primary and professional responsibilities as listed in the contract.	40.0 hrs
Gen Ed	15 credits quarterly, or 45 credits annually Additional primary and professional responsibilities as listed in the contract.	40.0 hrs

Nursing	10-12 credits quarterly, or 30-36 credits annually Additional primary and professional responsibilities as listed in the contract.	40.0 hrs
Librarians and Counselors	30 hours of primary responsibilities and 10 hours of professional responsibilities Additional primary and professional responsibilities as listed in the contract.	40.0 hrs

- 3. Full-time Faculty Primary Responsibilities
 - a. All full-time classroom faculty shall use their day for the following primary responsibilities:
 - i. Plan, prepare, and instruct in all modalities with best practices
 - ii. Conduct appropriate and frequent assessment of student performance and provide feedback so students are aware of their performance throughout the quarter
 - iii. Assume professional responsibilities for the education, health, safety, and welfare of students during the employee's work day, and notify relevant personnel of safety and maintenance needs
 - iv. Provide accommodations and accessible instruction in accordance with guidelines determined by Disability Resource Services that are in alignment with applicable state and federal laws
 - v. Utilize appropriate industry technology and campus approved technology
 - vi. Participate on tenure committees as assigned per section 16
 - vii. Maintain and update existing course/program curriculum as needed
 - viii. Post and hold office hours in designated work area (5 hours per week)
 - ix. Coordinate with other instructors, departments, and community partners to achieve course, program and/or college learning outcomes
 - x. Advise new and enrolled students and participate in official student advising days
 - xi. Network with relevant business, industry, and community organizations to promote and advance student success
 - xii. Conduct research relevant to program/course
 - xiii. Conduct outcomes assessment and comply with expectations of the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities from which results are used to continuously improve learning
 - b. All full-time Library faculty shall use their day for the following Primary responsibilities:
 - i. Plan, prepare and instruct in all modalities with best practices
 - ii. Conduct appropriate and frequent assessments of student performance and provide feedback so students are aware of their performance throughout the quarter
 - iii. Assume professional responsibilities for the education, health, safety, and welfare of students during the employee's work day and notify relevant personnel of safety and maintenance needs
 - iv. Provide accommodations and accessible instruction in accordance with guidelines determined by Disability Resource Services that are in alignment with applicable state and federal laws
 - v. Utilize appropriate industry technology and campus approved technology
 - vi. Participate on tenure committees, as assigned per section 16

- vii. Maintain and update existing course/program curriculum as needed and/or on a regular basis
- viii. Conduct research relevant to program/courses
- ix. Act as library liaison to other college departments to provide library services
- x. Administer library management system which provides cataloging, circulation and inventory services
- xi. Assist students, faculty and staff to find information and materials to meet information needs
- xii. Create documents about library services that support departmental and college accreditation reports and visits
- xiii. Create LibGuides and other marketing tools to help students, faculty and staff better know about and how to better use library services
- xiv. Select library materials for and deselect materials from the library collection
- xv. Stay current with library trends, services and organizations
- xvi. Work with library vendors to provide services to students, faculty and staff
- xvii. Expand library collection by borrowing /loaning library materials to/from other libraries via standard interlibrary loan protocols
- xviii. Provide online reference chat services per consortium obligations
- xix. Conduct outcomes assessment and comply with expectations of the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities from which results are used to continuously improve learning
- All full-time Counselors/Academic Advisors faculty shall use their day for the following Primary responsibilities:
 - i. Provide effective career counseling
 - ii. Assist students with admission into college programs
 - iii. Administer and interpret achievement and counseling-related tests and inventories
 - iv. Plan, prepare and instruct in all modalities with best practices
 - v. Provide accommodations and accessible instruction in accordance with guidelines determined by Disability Resource Services that are in alignment with applicable state and federal laws
 - vi. Administer retention and completion efforts in accordance with college's advising model
 - vii. Utilize appropriate industry technology and campus approved technology
 - viii. Participate in tenure committees, as assigned per section 16
 - ix. Coordinate quarterly group registration for currently enrolled students within assigned programs
 - x. Prescribe programs to aid students to overcome academic deficiencies and/or difficulties
 - xi. Update and maintain daily case notes in Dashboard management system
 - xii. Coordinate counseling services with designated committees and instructional divisions
 - xiii. Work with special populations (i.e. international students, Running Start, student conduct) as assigned

- xiv. Perform program budgetary and reporting functions within special population
- xv. Mediate disagreements between students and other students or college personnel
- Develop effective working and consultative relationships with students, staff and faculty
- xvii. Maintain recruiting activities with designated external organizations
- xviii. Participate in career fairs, job fairs, and other activities that promote the college throughout the community
- xix. Provide weekly information sessions/workshops
- xx. Maintain and update existing course/program curriculum as needed and/or on a regular basis
- d. All full-time Mental Health faculty shall use their day for the following Primary responsibilities:
 - i. Provide mental health counseling and interventions services to current students
 - ii. Provide referrals as needed
 - iii. Provide crisis counseling and grief counseling
 - iv. Provide mental health education and support as appropriate
 - v. Collaborate with campus administration in crisis response
 - vi. Actively participate and coordinate counseling services with designated committees and instructional divisions
 - vii. Complete all clinical and administrative documentation in a timely, accurate manner
 - viii. Consult and liaise with campus and community partners to provide support services for powerful groups targeted for oppression
 - ix. Use best practices to plan, prepare, and provide services in appropriate modalities
 - x. Participate on tenure committees, as assigned per section 16
 - xi. Perform duties of academic counselor
- 4. Full-Time Faculty Professional Responsibilities

All full-time faculty (classroom, librarian, and advisor/counselors) are responsible for performing professional duties that support the overall work of the college, division, department, course or program needs. It is understood the following functions may occur concurrently or result in overlap with the primary functions:

- a. Complete mandated state and federal regulatory training and reporting requirements
- b. Participate in program and/or department related meetings, committees, and activities
- c. Participate in at least one shared governance committee per academic year, all-staff meetings, Commencement and major college events as scheduled. Tenure committees do not count towards shared governance.
 - With the permission of the VPI, one shared governance obligation may be satisfied with an ongoing community activity that is connected with the mission of the college and does not conflict with instructional obligations.
- d. Participate in professional development, training and workshops related, but not be limited to, adult education practices and culturally responsive instruction
- e. Engage in relevant program and college budgetary and purchasing activities

- f. Course, lab, shop, preparation, safety & maintenance activities
- g. Participate in college and program promotion and/or student recruitment and retention activities

Additional time worked over and above that required is reflected in the salary schedule. Above activities may be performed after the eight (8) hour day or the forty (40) hour work week.

- 5. If assigned duties other than instructing (counselor or librarian), the employee will work for forty (40) hours in performing the usual and customary professional responsibilities of the position. It is anticipated that the employee will reserve some time for preparation and other related duties. The College and the Union recognize that mutually planned activities such as career fairs extend beyond the normal work week. When such activities result in an extended work week, adjustment in the employee's work schedule may be mutually determined.
- 6. It is recognized that the library must be staffed during evenings and weekends. Library faculty will not be required to work split shifts and will receive two consecutive days off weekly; different arrangements must be mutually agreed to between faculty and supervisor.
- 7. Non-Instructional Days are those workdays for classroom staff in which work may be performed either on or off-site during days not scheduled for instruction, provided faculty are available to communicate with college staff and students as needed. In order to ensure effective operations of the College, management may convene meetings that faculty will be required in order to address College priorities (excluding days designated for grading). Work performed may include but not be limited to the following:
 - a. Faculty In-service
 - b. All Campus and/or Strategic planning meetings
 - c. Student Advising days (one per quarter)
 - d. Professional Development as provided by RTC
 - e. Curriculum and Program Development
 - f. Prep, Planning, Grading, Student Records and Reporting (days designated for grading only; will have no meetings)
 - g. Meetings and workshops
 - h. Participation on committees (tenure, college council and shared governance, department and program related)
 - Participation in college and program promotion and/or student recruitment and retention activities
 - j. Course, lab, shop, preparation, safety and maintenance activities
 - k. Business, industry, community networking

B. Adjunct Employees

- 1. Adjunct employees are those who are not contracted as full-time employees, and are employed on a quarter by quarter basis with no expectation of employment continuing beyond their current contract. Assignments are limited to no more than a full-time load as defined in Section 10.A.2. Fall, Winter, and Spring quarters and no more than 12 credits Summer quarter. Adjunct faculty perform the following Instructional Functions:
 - Plan, prepare and instruct with best practices
 - b. Conduct appropriate and frequent assessment of student performance and provide feedback so students are aware of their performance throughout the quarter
 - c. Assume professional responsibilities for the education, health, safety, and welfare of students during the employee's workday and notify relevant personnel of safety and maintenance needs.

- d. Provide accommodations and accessible instruction in accordance with guidelines determined by Disability Resource Services that are in alignment with applicable state and federal laws.
- Utilize appropriate industry technology and campus approved technology
- f. Coordinate with other instructors, departments, and advisory boards (if applicable) to achieve course, program and/or college learning outcomes
- g. Maintain and update existing course curriculum as needed
- h. Complete mandated state and federal training, and reporting requirements
- 2. Associate Faculty Status
 - a. New adjunct faculty will be informed of the process to become an associate faculty after the second satisfactory evaluation. Adjunct faculty who maintain at least 66% of a fulltime load during nine (9) of the previous twelve (12) quarters, excluding summer quarter, shall be eligible to apply for Associate Faculty Status for the subsequent academic year. The process includes maintaining a professional development plan and supervisor evaluations. The faculty member will submit and maintain a portfolio of activities to the dean which demonstrates continuous improvement as well as engagement with the college over the course of the (9) to (12) quarters. This portfolio will be housed in the college learning management system and shall include the following documents:
 - i. The candidate's Teaching Philosophy (TP)
 - ii. Example syllabi, assignments, and assessment strategies
 - iii. Documentation of three (3) Professional Development Activities within three (3) years, according to the professional development plan that identifies priorities for professional growth
 - iv. A minimum of three (3) supervisor evaluations in accordance with Article 8, Section 4.C.
 - b. The dean will grant or deny status. If approved, Associate Faculty Status would take effect at the start of fall quarter. If denied, the faculty member has the right to:
 - i. repeat quarterly activities to improve performance over the course of the next academic year, then present updated materials to the Dean; or
 - ii. end the process and continue to instruct as an adjunct; or
 - iii. appeal the decision to the appropriate Vice President within 10 calendar days

Decisions relating to the granting or denial of Associate Faculty Status shall not be subject to the grievance procedure in this agreement.

- 3. The Associate Faculty quarterly contract includes required professional activities on non-instructional days in addition to the primary instructional functions. Associate Faculty are responsible for performing the following professional activities that support the overall work of the college, division, department, course or program needs:
 - a. Participate in program and/or department related meetings, committees, and activities
 - Participate in all-staff meetings, Commencement and major college events as scheduled
 - c. Participate in at least two shared governance activities per academic year
 - d. Participate in professional development, training and workshops related, but not be limited to adult education practices and culturally responsive instruction
 - e. Advise new and enrolled students

Associate Faculty who continue to perform the professional duties in 3.a - 3.d throughout the course of the academic year will maintain their status. Associate Faculty who continue to

meet the requirements of the status may be reinstated, with administrative approval, after periods of non-employment of no more than three (3) quarters, excluding summer quarter.

- 4. Those adjunct employees with Associate Faculty Status will receive first scheduling consideration by course or academic specialty over other adjunct employees. Associate Faculty shall be provided with the proposed schedule of classes for upcoming quarters and given the opportunity to communicate their availability and express interest in classes they are qualified to teach. Scheduling decisions shall take into account the following priorities, where possible, listed in order of importance:
 - a. Offer all interested Associate Faculty at least one class within their availability
 - b. Offer all interested Associate Faculty the number of classes within their availability that would allow them to retain benefits
 - c. Offer all interested Associate Faculty the number of classes within their availability that would allow them to retain Associate Faculty Status
 - d. Avoid large gaps in Associate Faculty schedules in which no classes are taught

If multiple Associate Faculty are interested in the same class, the supervisor shall first consider the need to ensure all courses have qualified instructors when making assignments, and second, in no particular order: seniority, faculty expertise, past performance, and departmental activities.

- 5. The supervisor retains the right to make such assignments as deemed necessary and the College makes no promise or expectation of future employment or renewal of employment.
- 6. Failure by the Associate Faculty member to comply with the laws, rules, and regulations of the State of Washington and/or the College may result in termination of employment. Investigation findings based on complaints that arise under the college's nondiscrimination, anti-bias, or title ix policies, or for repeated documented performance concerns may also result in termination.
- 7. Associate Faculty who apply for a full-time position for which they meet the minimum requirements will be granted an interview.
- 8. In cases of concern around the performance of an Associate Faculty member, the dean will put into place a performance improvement plan (see Article 8, Section 7) for a period of one or two quarters; The Associate Faculty Member will be put on probation for the duration of the plan and may lose Associate Faculty Status if the requirements of the plan are not satisfied. A performance improvement plan is not required for investigative findings based on complaints that arise under the college's nondiscrimination, anti-bias, or title ix policies, nor for repeated documented performance concerns.

C. Adjunct Program Coordinators

An Adjunct Program Coordinator is an adjunct that coordinates and directs a professional technical program and

- a. Plan, prepare and instruct with best practices.
- b. Conduct appropriate and frequent assessment of student performance and provide feedback so students are aware of their performance throughout the quarter
- c. Assume professional responsibilities for the education, health, safety, and welfare of students during the employee's workday and notify relevant personnel of safety and maintenance needs.
- d. Provide accommodations and accessible instruction in accordance with guidelines determined by Disability Resource Services that are in alignment with applicable state and federal laws.
- e. Utilize appropriate industry technology and campus approved technology
- f. Coordinate with other instructors, departments, and community partners to achieve course, program and/or college learning outcomes.

- g. Advise new and enrolled students
- h. Maintain and update existing course/program curriculum as needed-
- i. Course, lab, shop, preparation, safety & maintenance activities
- j. Complete mandated state and federal training, and reporting requirements
- k. Network with relevant business, industry, and community organizations to promote and advance student success
- I. Conduct research relevant to program/course
- Conduct outcomes assessment and comply with expectations of the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities from which results are used to continuously improve learning
- n. Participate in all staff meetings, commencement and major college events as scheduled
- o. Participate in at least two shared governance activities per academic year.

D. Clinical or Co-op Program Study

Supervised learning experience in an industry setting is an important educational component for many professional technical programs. Course may be a Clinical, Externship, Internship, Practicum, or other cooperative experience. These experiences, managed by program faculty, augment instruction and provide students the opportunity to practice industry competencies.

- 1. Student placement should be coordinated by staff with expertise in the area of instruction.
- 2. The ratio of students to faculty should ensure quality experience. Accreditation or other commission mandates will be followed, as approved by the program Dean.
- 3. Faculty should meet regularly with the student(s) in conferences or in seminars at agreed upon times, for the equivalent of 2 hours per week.
- 4. Faculty should regularly participate in on-site visits. At least two on-site visits occur per quarter.
- 5. Faculty will document onsite visits, seminars and conferences with students.
- 6. Grading procedures should be pre-determined, based on evaluation by the faculty in consultation with worksite supervisors.
- 7. Due to Accreditation and State clinical requirements, which require onsite faculty supervision of students at all times, for Nursing and Nursing Assistant programs each clinical practicum credit equals a load credit. Non-nursing programs with clinical, externship, internship, practicum, or other cooperative courses will be .66 load per credit.

Section 11 Faculty Facilities

- A. Each program employing full-time employees will have at least the following:
 - 1. Space to store the prescribed instructional materials and supplies;
 - 2. A work area for the preparation of instructional materials;
 - a. Full-time faculty will be provided with a private office/cubicle work area
 - b. Adjunct work areas may be shared
 - c. Private areas are available on campus for confidential conversations and/or focus work.
 - 3. A serviceable desk or table, chair, and a file cabinet, as requested.
- B. The College will have available to employees:
 - 1. Lounge and dining facilities with a refrigerator, chairs, tables, and microwave oven;

- Campus parking. The administration will maintain designated parking facilities for employees;
- 3. Mailboxes in a central location where access is not hindered.
- C. The College accepts the responsibility and maintains the authority to determine and maintain fixtures, lights, plumbing, student and instructor work stations, and other facilities required or furnished employees for the performance of their assigned tasks. The employee shall utilize regular administrative channels in identifying and seeking adjustment to any deficient fixtures, lights, plumbing, student and instructor workstations, and other facilities.

Section 12 Use of Personal Vehicle

Employees have the option of using a Renton Technical College vehicle when traveling on College business.

Employees shall not be required to drive students to activities which take place away from the College. They may do so voluntarily only with the advance approval of their immediate supervisor.

The College will provide reimbursement for authorized and properly certified travel necessary to the performance of assigned duties. Claims for reimbursement will be prepared and submitted in accordance with current College procedures to the appropriate administrator.

Compensation for use of personal vehicles shall be at the maximum rate and in accordance with regulations established by the Office of Financial Management (OFM). Employees using their personal vehicle on College-related business must have bodily injury and property damage liability insurance.

Section 13 Hold Harmless

Whenever any claim or proceeding is filed against a College employee which the employee believes arises out of College employment, the College will defend and hold the employee harmless if the employee so requests in writing and cooperates fully with the state's defense and if the Board of Trustees or the Attorney General grants such a request, provided that the Board of Trustees determines that the employee was acting in good faith within the scope of their employment and is otherwise entitled to representation under Washington state law.

The College participates in the state of Washington self-insurance program.

Any case of assault upon an instructor shall be promptly reported by the appropriate administrator to the appropriate law enforcement agency, the College President, and the Union. The College will fully investigate the assault and take appropriate disciplinary action within its statutory power. The College will advise the instructor regarding procedures for pressing criminal and civil damages.

Any threat of assault that is reported to the College administration shall be investigated and appropriate action taken. The results of the investigation will be provided to the instructor filing the complaint.

An instructor may, at all times, use such force as is necessary to protect himself/herself, a fellow instructor or administrator, or a student from attack, physical and/or verbal abuse and/or injury.

Section 14 Individual Employee Contracts

- A. The College shall have a written contract with each employee and it shall be in conformity with the laws of this state and terms and conditions of this contract; and will include stipulated hours and/or days, rate of pay and other pertinent employment data. If collective bargaining has not been completed covering the period of the individual contract, a rider will be attached specifying that the individual contract will be adjusted in accordance with appropriate provisions of the Union-College contract.
- B. Summer Quarter Schedule Rotation: Except for instances when program needs shall supersede a department's rotation plan, the following shall determine the allocation of summer session appointments:

- a. Faculty in each department shall create a summer rotation plan, which will be approved by the dean. The department rotation plan shall ensure that tenured/tenure-track employees and adjunct faculty in the department have equal access to departmental summer session employment during a summer quarter. Departmental summer quarter employment assignments shall include all summer school course offering. No faculty member shall teach two summers in a row unless all other faculty on the roster have either passed on the teaching opportunity, actually taught a summer course, or unless there is program need.
- b. As with all course assignments, faculty expertise in the discipline will be considered in making summer assignments. The qualifications of the faculty member will be evaluated in terms of general training, past successful teaching experience and equitable outcomes. These qualifications will be determined by the dean.

Section 15 Employee Involvement

- A. The College and the Union are in agreement regarding the importance of cooperation and involvement of all employees in supporting the program and overall goals of the College. The College is committed to the use of all resources including employee input in various aspects of the operations and planning and development of the College and its programs. Significant changes and new developments which will impact the College will be shared with employees.
- B. It is anticipated that instructors will appropriately participate in their respective program advisory committee. Instructors will receive the meeting notices and agendas which are sent to committee members. Adjunct faculty who are invited by the program dean will be compensated for their attendance at the non-instructional rate of pay.

Section 16 Tenure

A. Purpose

- 1. Pursuant to law (<u>RCW 28B.50.850</u> through <u>RCW 28B.50.872</u>), the following rules shall define a reasonable and orderly process for appointment of faculty members to tenure status.
- 2. Notwithstanding any provision of this <u>Section 16</u>, the College and the Union accept the responsibilities related to the tenure process conveyed unto them by this Contract and the law and agree to fully comply with all provisions of RCW 28B.50.850 through 28B.50.872.

B. Definitions

- 1. <u>Tenure</u> shall mean a faculty appointment for an indefinite period of time which may be revoked only for adequate cause by due process.
- Tenure Candidate Faculty shall mean tenure candidates, which are those full-time instructors, counselors, or librarians currently appointed to positions eligible for tenure and as defined in RCW 28B.50.851(4).
- 3. <u>Tenure Candidate Period</u> shall mean a probationary period not to exceed nine (9) consecutive College quarters, excluding summer quarter and approved leaves of absence.
 - The period is one of professional development and evaluation between the tenure review committee and the tenure candidate faculty member.
 - The review committee may, with the written consent of the tenure candidate faculty member, formally recommend to the Board the extension of the tenure candidate period.
- Tenure-eligible Position shall mean any full-time faculty position at the College which is funded under basic support, and not funded under the "special funds" outlined in <u>RCW</u> <u>28B.50.851</u>.
- 5. <u>Tenure Review Committee (TRC)</u> shall mean a committee composed of the tenure candidate's peers, a student representative, and an administrative staff person.

- 6. <u>Tenure Steering Committee (TSC)</u> is a shared governance, campus-wide representative committee that oversees the consistent application of the tenure review process and monitors compliance with corresponding RCWs, WACs, and established policies and procedures of the College. The TSC does not evaluate tenure candidates as a committee, but individual members will serve as a peer on a tenure review committee (TRC).
- 7. Appointing Authority shall mean the Board of Trustees of Renton Technical College.
- C. Operational Guidelines for Tenure Review Committee
 - 1. Each tenure review committee shall be composed of at least five (5) persons:
 - a. Three (3) tenured faculty members appointed by the Union.
 - b. One (1) full-time student appointed by the College President or designee.
 - c. One (1) administrator named by the College President or designee.
 - 2. Faculty Appointment to Tenure Committee
 - a. The Union shall assign faculty to tenure review committees from the pool of tenured faculty in consultation with administration to ensure that assignments maximize the mentoring benefit to the tenure candidate.
 - i. Whenever possible, tenured faculty member shall not be required to serve concurrently on more than two (2) tenure committees. However, based on the number of tenure candidates, it may be necessary for some faculty to serve on more.
 - ii. Any faculty member serving as chair or recorder for two (2) or more tenure review committees in any fiscal year shall receive a stipend of \$500 per year for each committee after the first.
 - b. Any vacancy on a tenure review committee shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment. However, a vacancy that is not filled during the current review period shall not prevent the remaining committee members from completing their duties and responsibilities.

Meetings

- a. The review committee must begin operating within six (6) weeks of the start of the tenure candidate period. The administrator is responsible for calling the first meeting.
- Each tenure review committee shall elect a chairperson and a recorder at its initial meeting.
- c. No less than three (3) meetings shall be held annually during the tenure candidate period.
- d. The tenure candidate may or may not attend a committee meeting as deemed appropriate by the committee chair.
- e. Committee comments and recommendations shall be communicated both verbally and in writing to the tenure candidate.
- f. A majority vote of all committee members is required for tenure recommendations. Minority recommendations will also be submitted, if needed.
- g. All tenure review committee meetings shall be documented in a meeting summary with an identification of all members present.
- 4. Governance Credit for Tenure Review Committee
 - a. In order to receive credit for serving on a TRC, the faculty member must attend at least two (2) tenure committee meetings and conduct at least two (2) observations of the tenure candidate during each year served on the committee. The Governance

Documentation Form must be submitted to the supervising dean or director to receive governance credit for serving on a TRC.

D. Duties and Responsibilities of the Committee

- The committee shall mentor and evaluate the tenure candidate.
- 2. The committee shall advise the tenure candidate of professional strengths and of areas needing improvement and assist in the development of a Professional Development Plan.
- 3. The committee should, if possible, commit to serve with the tenure candidate until tenure is awarded or denied. Changes in the committee composition may be considered if both the Union and administration agree that it would be in the best interest of the tenure candidate.
- 4. The committee will commit to respect confidentiality of the tenure candidate except when necessary to seek assistance from the College or other faculty members.
- 5. Tenure evaluations are due during the second, fifth and eighth quarters of the tenure candidate's employment (excluding summer). No later than the end of November, February OR May, based on the individual candidate's tenure calendar, the committee shall submit a recommendation to the Board via the College President as to a) continuation of the tenure candidate period, b) non-renewal of contract for the coming contractual period, or c) tenure. This recommendation shall be in the form of a Comprehensive Annual Evaluation. The Comprehensive Annual Evaluation shall include, but not be limited to:
 - a. A summary of the tenure candidate's progress citing both the strengths and areas needing improvement.
 - b. Committee recommendation.
 - c. A copy of the Professional Development Plan for the three-year tenure candidate period.
 - d. Documentation of the process.
 - e. Meeting summaries.
 - f. Documentation of committee observations and committee evaluations.
- 6. The committee shall meet with the tenure candidate to discuss the report and to furnish the tenure candidate with a copy. The tenure candidate shall be required to acknowledge receipt of the tenure review committee's written recommendations by signing the Comprehensive Annual Evaluation.
- 7. The review committee may, with the written consent of the tenure candidate, formally recommend to the Board, the extension of the tenure candidate period. When approved, the extension shall be for one (1), two (2), or three (3) quarters, excluding summer, beyond the original tenure candidate period. This recommendation should only be made when the review committee believes that the tenure candidate needs additional time to satisfactorily complete a Professional Development Plan already in progress.
- 8. Should tenure candidate period be extended, no later than the mid-point of the quarter preceding the last tenure candidate quarter, the committee shall submit a recommendation to the Board via the College President as the award of tenure or non-renewal.

E. Duties and Responsibilities of the Chair

- The committee shall elect a faculty member of the committee to serve as chair. Upon election, the chair shall organize the meetings at times and places convenient to the members.
- 2. The chair shall encourage the members of the committee to adopt a code of cooperation and a code of confidentiality.
- The chair leads the committee in developing the tenure candidate's goals and objectives for the year, in making committee assignments, and ensuring committee members carry out assignments.

- 4. The chair shall notify the student member and their instructor of the student's schedule and committee responsibilities.
- The chair shall present to the Board the committee's recommendation regarding the award or non-award of tenure.
- F. Duties and Responsibilities of the Recorder
 - 1. Upon election, the recorder shall take and distribute minutes of each meeting.
 - The recorder shall complete the initial draft of the Comprehensive Annual Evaluation for the committee to review.
 - 3. The recorder shall complete the final draft of the Comprehensive Annual Evaluation for the committee to submit to the College President.
- G. Duties and Responsibilities of the Committee Members
 - Each member has the responsibility to actively participate in the activities and deliberations of the committee.
 - 2. Each member has the responsibility to be available to meet with the tenure candidate at mutually convenient times.

H. Evaluation Criteria and Procedures

- The tenure review committee shall utilize Skill Standards-based evaluation criteria including, where appropriate: instructional skill; classroom or lab management; professional preparation and scholarship; effort toward improvement when needed; handling student discipline and attendance; collegiality with all College staff and students; participation in activities supporting the College; interest in instructing, counseling, or professional librarianship; and knowledge of subject matter.
- 2. The tenure review committee shall communicate to the tenure candidate the guidelines and procedures to be used.
- Prior to the first tenure review committee meeting, the tenure candidate should complete a self-assessment using the Faculty Assessment form. Copies of the assessment will be distributed to the members of the tenure review committee for discussion at the first committee meeting.
- 4. Complete copies of the tenure candidate's quarterly student evaluation summary will be shared with the tenure committee.
- 5. To assist the committee in the discharge of its duties, input regarding the performance of the tenure candidate may be solicited or voluntarily provided by the tenure candidate's immediate supervisor.

Completion dates may be adjusted by the committee to expedite the committee's efforts. Completion date adjustments which may be made shall be communicated to the tenure candidate.

Should the supervising dean not be assigned to the tenure review committee, they will evaluate the tenure candidate using the Faculty assessment form during each year of the tenure review period. The supervisor will share the content of the evaluation with the tenure candidate's tenure committee prior to submitting it to the Vice President for Instruction. Once reviewed, the Vice President for Instruction will forward the completed assessment form for inclusion in the tenure candidate's tenure report to the Board of Trustees. A copy will also be placed in the tenure candidate's personnel file.

I. Recommendation of the College President

Tenure evaluations are due to the Board of Trustees during the second, fifth and eighth
quarters of the tenure candidate period, excluding summer. No later than the end of
November, February or May based on the individual candidate's tenure calendar, the College
President shall submit a recommendation which may include input from the appropriate

- associate dean and vice president, to the Board as to the continuation of tenure candidate status, award of tenure, or non-renewal.
- 2. Should probation be extended, no later than the mid-point of the quarter preceding the last tenure candidate quarter, the College President shall submit a recommendation, as well as all other recommendations, to the Board as to award of tenure, or non-renewal.
- J. Rights and Reasonable Expectations of the Tenure candidate
 - 1. A tenure candidate shall have the right to petition for the removal of a member from the review committee. Petitions for the removal of a faculty member shall be made to the Union President or designee; for removal of a student or an administrator to the College President or designee. With any such petition, the person acting on it shall consult with the committee to seek its recommendation regarding the petition. Should the petition be granted, the resulting vacancy shall be filled in accordance with the provisions set forth in Article 6, <a href="Section 16.C..
 - 2. Observations by committee members may be either scheduled or unscheduled.
 - 3. Evaluation instruments and criteria will be available to the tenure candidate.
 - 4. In the event of disagreement over an area of evaluation, the tenure candidate may submit a written statement of these disagreements to the tenure review committee. At the request of the tenure candidate, such statements shall be included along with committee reports to the College President.
 - The tenure candidate shall commit to respect the confidentially of the deliberations and the dignity of the committee members, notwithstanding the tenure candidate's right to ask questions and seek advice from the College or other faculty members including those rights outlined in <u>Article 6, Section 16.J.</u>
- K. Action of the Appointing Authority
 - Upon receiving the recommendation of the tenure review committee and all other recommendations, the Board may meet with the College President, the chair of the committee, and other staff as they deem appropriate, to review the probationary record and recommendations submitted to it.
 - 2. The Board shall give reasonable consideration to the TRC recommendation and may consider other recommendations as to the award of tenure, continuation of probationary status, or non-renewal.
 - 3. Final decision regarding award or denial of tenure rests with the Board.
 - 4. Prior to the end of the eighth (8th) quarter of probation, the Board may deny tenure and not renew a tenure candidate's contract without giving a cause. Tenure candidate faculty not recommended for tenure must be notified no later than one complete quarter before the expiration of the tenure candidate's faculty appointment.

L. Tenure Steering Committee

- 1. The TSC shall consist of five (5) full-time tenured faculty members and the Vice President of Instruction or designee. The faculty members will be appointed as needed by the RFT Executive Board prior to June 30 of each year to serve a three (3) year term beginning fall quarter of the following academic year. Mid-term vacancies will be appointed by the College or the president of the RFT Executive Board. Members of the TSC may resign voluntarily or be removed for cause. Standing guests may be appointed by the College President (or designee) to the committee as needed, as nonvoting members.
- 2. The Chair of the TSC will be elected in spring by the TSC members and will serve for a term of one (1) academic year. The term of service will commence with the beginning of the following fall quarter. Mid-term chair vacancies will be filled from the faculty representatives currently serving on the TSC to complete the remainder of the term.
- 3. The TSC shall meet at least once per quarter and as determined by the Chair.

- The duties and responsibilities of the TSC shall be oversight of the tenure review process and include:
 - a. Develop and maintain the Tenure Process Guidebook.
 - b. Develop and maintain the Tenure website.
 - c. Develop and maintain tenure forms and materials.
 - d. Orientation and training of members of the tenure review system as needed.
 - e. Hear appeals by tenure candidates and tenure committee members regarding noncompliance with the tenure review process as set forth in the Tenure Process Guidebook and the RCWs with authority to make recommendations to the appropriate authority for resolution.
 - f. Provide assistance to tenure candidates and tenure committee members who have questions regarding tenure laws, policies and procedures.
 - g. Communicate with tenure committees regarding deadlines for submission of annual reports, tenure candidate portfolios and other documentation.
 - Maintain confidentiality except when necessary to seek assistance from College administration or the RFT Executive Board.
 - Suggest improvement for the future direction of the tenure process to the College Administration.
- 5. Although the TSC is not an evaluative committee of tenure candidates, individual members will serve on tenure review committees. Membership of the TSC will count as governance credit toward professional development for their service. The Governance Documentation Form for Tenure Committee Members will be used to document participation in the TSC and will be submitted at the conclusion of the faculty member's assignment.
- M. Exclusion from the Grievance Procedure

The provisions of <u>Article 6</u>, <u>Section 16</u>, regarding tenure, shall be excluded from the grievance procedure. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent application of the definitions contained in <u>Section 16</u> to other articles in this agreement.

Section 17 Safety and Health

- A. The College shall provide prescription safety glasses that meet OSHA/WISHA standards to full-time employees who teach in programs where safety glasses are required. The College will subcontract with a local optician for the purchase of safety glasses and will provide a voucher to each eligible employee not to exceed \$250 per employee every two years.
- B. The College shall provide annual testing and immunizations for faculty in Allied Health programs where it is required for maintaining compliance with clinical affiliation agreements. This testing will follow the Center for Disease Control (CDC) guidelines for healthcare providers.
- C. <u>Criminal Background Check</u>: The College may perform National Criminal Background checks for prospective employment of faculty as well as to comply with the requirements of some community partners used for clinical and cooperative education sites. It is the responsibility of the supervising dean to identify those faculty who have been assigned to visit community partners who require annual background checks. These background checks will be completed at the expense of the College. A copy of the background check results will be provided to the employee if there is a disqualifying conviction or event.
 - Any faculty required to undergo a background check who refuses to cooperate in the background check process or who refuses to submit the information necessary to complete the background check, including fingerprints when required, may be subject to dismissal procedures.
- D. <u>Confidentiality</u>: The dissemination of the information contained in the background checks will be limited to those persons who have a documented need to know in the performance of their official

- duties. All state and federal laws will be followed regarding required notification of licensing and certifying bodies of listed convictions/events.
- E. Interpretation/Outcomes: The information in the background check will be interpreted by the faculty member's assigned supervisor. Events that may cause disqualification will vary by department or site, and may be out of the control of the College. The affected employee will be notified in writing, stating the specific record or records indicating non-compliance. If there is a disqualifying conviction/event that will prevent the faculty from attending their assigned clinical or cooperative education site, appropriate action will be taken by the College. This action may include reassignment of the current faculty to other duties or other clinical sites, or may lead to dismissal procedures.
- F. <u>Appeal of Findings</u>: The affected employee will have the right to appeal the result of the background check. This appeal must be submitted in writing to Human Resources within 10 working days of receipt of written notification of non-compliance.

Section 18 Use of Security Cameras

- A. The College may use security cameras to enhance the safety and security of the campus community, but not manage or track employee activity. It is the College's responsibility to consider a safe environment balanced with the individual's right to privacy.
- B. Security cameras may be used in public and open areas. No cameras will be installed in classroom or faculty offices without faculty request or knowledge. Areas recorded will be marked with appropriate signage, and cameras will not record sound.
- C. Any investigation utilizing video recordings will be conducted in conjunction with this collective bargaining agreement. If recordings are used as part of a just cause investigation, the union will receive a copy of said recording per Article 6, Section 7.
- D. All recordings from security cameras are confidential and will not generally be made available for third parties unless required by law. Exceptions include cooperative efforts with law enforcement and union representation.
- E. Use of security cameras for any non-official purpose is strictly forbidden. Any person utilizing security cameras for any illegal or prohibited purposes may be subject to disciplinary action in accordance with this collective bargaining agreement. Recording devices may be required for accommodations or compliance with state or federal law.

ARTICLE 7 LEAVES

Section 1 Definition

For the purpose of this contract, a leave shall be defined as an authorized interruption of duties or responsibilities. Leave terms shall apply to both full-time and adjunct faculty unless otherwise stated.

Section 2 Conditions

Leaves will be granted, PROVIDED that:

- A. Applications for leaves are appropriately presented.
- B. The employee has met all the eligibility requirements of the particular leave requested.
- C. The employee requests the leave in accordance with College policy, rules and regulations and the terms of the existing contract.
- D. Unless specifically provided for, time spent on leaves does not qualify for salary placement purposes, including career step.

E. The College President or designee may determine a special need for leave and, therefore, authorize such a leave.

Section 3 Salary Deductions

- A. Employees using any of the authorized leaves without pay will have salary deductions made in accordance with the appropriate College policy and terms of this contract.
- B. In the case of employees who have exhausted leave benefits under the conditions of the applicable leave category and have not been allocated additional days by the College a full pro rata deduction will be made for all additional days taken.
- C. Employee's instructing under quarterly contracts during the summer may utilize any of their accumulated sick leave and/or emergency leave during the summer session.

Section 4 Sick Leave

Paid sick leave shall be allowed for absence due to personal illness, injury, emergency, bereavement, or to care for family members of the employee with a health condition that requires treatment or supervision.

Employees shall report each instance of absence on an approved time and leave form. Leave used for Pregnancy Disability or Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA, including Parental Leave) purposes should also be reported to Human Resources.

A. Accrual

Leave shall be accumulated and accrued in the following manner:

<u>Full-time</u> employees shall be granted twelve (12) days (96 hours) paid sick leave each year. Such leave shall be allocated on the first working day of the contracted year to employees beginning their first year of employment at the College. Should an employee's first working day begin after the first month of the contracted year, the allocation shall be pro-rated. Thereafter, employees shall be allocated one (1) day per calendar month to a maximum of twelve (12) days (96 hours) per year.

Adjunct employees will begin earning sick leave with the first (1st) day of employment. Sick leave will be accumulated after the first (1st) quarter of employment. Sick leave may be taken at any time beginning with the first (1st) day of the second (2nd) quarter of employment. Adjunct employees shall accrue sick leave based upon their individual employment contract(s). The amount accrued shall be prorated in proportion to the individual's quarterly teaching commitment, based on student contact hours, as related to the full-time contact hours for that quarter. Maximum accrual shall not exceed eight (8) hours per month.

Full-time employees of Renton Technical College who work additional adjunct contracts will not earn additional sick leave. Adjunct employees shall be allocated any such prorated leave at the end of each guarter worked.

B. Usage

Sick leave may be used for:

- An absence resulting from an employee's mental or physical illness, injury or health condition
 to accommodate the employee's need for medical diagnosis, care or treatment of a mental or
 physical illness, injury or health condition; or an employee's need for preventative medical
 care.
- 2. Care of family members as required by the Family Care Act (<u>WAC 296-130</u>). "Family member" means any of the following (per <u>RCW 49.46.210.2</u>)
 - a child, including a biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, or a child to whom the employee stands in local parentis, is a legal guardian, or is a de facto parent, regardless of age or dependency status;

- b. a biological, adoptive, de facto, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child;
- c. a spouse;
- d. a registered domestic partner;
- e. a grandparent;
- f. a grandchild;
- g. a sibling.
- 3. Illness or preventative health care appointments of family members listed in item 2, above, when the presence of the employee is required.
- 4. Leave for Military Family Leave as required by RCW 49.77.
- 5. Leave for Domestic Violence Leave as required by RCW 49.76.
- 6. Qualifying absences for Family and Medical Leave.
- 7. When the college has been closed by order of a public official for any health related reason, or when an employee's child's school or place of care has been closed for such a reason.

C. Loss of Accumulated Sick Leave & Sick Leave Reinstatement

Any employee who has not been in pay-status or have been separated from state service for five (5) years shall lose any accumulated sick leave.

Former College or State of Washington employees who are re-employed within five years of their separation from service will have their sick leave balance at the time of separation restored, upon successful petition. Employees must petition for reinstatement of the accrued sick leave balance within three months of returning to service. Failure to petition for reinstatement of sick leave will result in the loss of any accrued sick leave balance.

D. Transferability

<u>Transfer in:</u> Accumulated sick leave is transferable to the College from the following: any Washington state agency, education service district, school district, or other institution of higher education as defined by <u>RCW 28B.10.016</u> upon termination from that state agency, district, or institution in accordance with <u>RCW 28B.50.551</u>.

The College will only accept any transferred-in leave once the College is the employee's sole employer for two (2) consecutive quarters. Renton Technical College is the sole employer when the employee is not employed by any other Washington state agency, district, or institution from which sick leave may be transferred.

<u>Transfer out</u>: The College will transfer out an accumulated sick leave balance as per the receiving agency's policies.

E. Attendance Incentive (Sick Leave Buy Back)

Employees may cash in unused sick days above an accumulation of sixty (60) days at a ratio of one (1) full day's pay for each four (4) full accumulated sick leave days. Employees who qualify for the State's Sick Leave Buy Back program will be provided information to participate in the incentive, as appropriate to RCW.

F. Shared Leave Program

 Employees may participate in the state's shared leave program in accordance with <u>RCW</u> 41.04.650 and College procedure. Under the provisions of this program, the College shall receive and process requests for leave sharing. Shared leave may be requested and shared to aid another employee who:

- a. is suffering from or has a relative or household member suffering from an extraordinary or severe illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition.
- b. is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
- c. has been called to service in the uniformed services,
- d. is responding to a state of emergency anywhere within the United States declared by the federal or state government, or,
- e. for employees who are sick or temporarily disabled because of pregnancy disability or for the purposes of parental leave to bond with the employee's newborn, adoptive or foster child.
- An employee is not required to deplete all of their sick leave before receiving shared leave for the purposes of pregnancy disability or for parental leave and may maintain up to forty (40) hours of sick leave in reserve.
- 3. Employees may request or use shared leave for parental leave to up to sixteen (16) weeks after the birth or placement of a child.
- 4. The College will determine the amount of leave, if any, which an employee may receive. However, an employee will not receive more than five hundred twenty-two (522) days of shared leave, except that, the College may authorize leave in excess of five hundred twenty-two (522) days in extraordinary circumstances for an employee qualifying for the program because he or she is suffering from an illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition which is of an extraordinary or severe nature.

Section 5 Work Related Illness or Injury Leave

For accidents and injuries which occur to employees during working hours and/or while they are carrying out their responsibilities, the College agrees to maintain maximum allowable coverage under current provisions of workers' compensation legislation. The College further agrees to review each such accident case on an individual basis when loss of salary is involved. The College shall provide necessary information and forms to the employee who is filing a claim under Workers' Compensation Act.

Section 6 Family and Medical Leave

A. Family and Medical Leave

The College shall grant an unpaid leave of absence of up to twelve (12) work weeks during any twelve (12) month period for eligible employees for one or more of the following:

- 1. parental leave for the birth of a child or the placement of a child with the employee for adoption or for foster care;
- 2. to care for a spouse or domestic partner, son, daughter, or parent with a serious health condition;
- 3. for the employee's own serious health condition
- 4. for a qualifying exigency when the employee's spouse, child or parent is on active duty or on call to active duty status of the Armed Forces, Reserves or National Guard for deployment to a foreign country. (Qualifying exigencies include attending certain military events, arranging for alternate childcare, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain counseling sessions, rest and recuperation, and attending post-deployment reintegration briefings. In addition, the College and the employee may agree that other events which arise out of the covered military member's active duty or call to active duty status qualify as an exigency, provided both agree to the timing and duration of the leave)
- B. Military Caregiver Leave will be provided to an eligible employee who is the spouse, child of any age, parent or next of kin of a covered service member to take up to twenty-six (26) workweeks of leave in a single twelve (12) month period to care for the covered service member or veteran who is suffering from a serious illness or injury incurred in the line of duty.

During the single twelve (12) month period during which Military Caregiver Leave is taken, the employee may only take a combined total of twenty-six (26) workweeks of leave for Military Caregiver Leave and leave taken for other FMLA qualifying reasons.

The single twelve (12) month period to care for a covered service member or veteran begins on the first (1) day the employee takes leave for this reason and ends twelve (12) months later, regardless of the twelve (12) month period established for other types of FMLA leave.

- C. A serious health condition is defined as a health condition that involves: (a) inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility, or (b) continuing treatment by a health care provider. The College will require certification from a health care provider starting the nature of the condition, the date on which the condition commenced and the probable duration of the condition and a statement that the employee cannot perform the essential functions of their job.
 - If the leave is to care for a family member, it must also include a statement from the health care provider that the employee is needed to care for the family member and an estimate of the time needed.
- D. Employees eligible for family and medical leave are those who have worked at least twelve (12) months for the State of Washington and at least 1,250 hours during the twelve (12) month period before the leave is requested.
- E. The college has the authority to designate absences that meet the criteria of FMLA. The use of any paid or unpaid leave for an FMLA-qualifying event will run concurrently with, not in addition to, the use of the FMLA for that event. Leave for a work-related injury, covered by workers' compensation benefits, will not run concurrently with FMLA.
- F. If the necessity for leave is foreseeable, the employee shall provide not less than thirty (30) days' notice to the Human Resources Department, except in cases where treatment requires leave to begin in less than thirty (30) days. In this event the employee shall provide such notice as is practicable
- G. The College will maintain employer-paid health care coverage for the duration of the twelve (12) weeks for employees on leave who were eligible for health care coverage before the leave began. The employee will be required to pay his or her share of health insurance, life insurance and disability insurance or premiums. The College may require an employee to exhaust all paid leave prior to using any leave without pay, except that the employee will be allowed to use eight hours a month of accrued leave during each month to provide for the continuation of benefits as provided for by the Public Employees Benefit Board. If an employee fails to return to work after the expiration of the family and medical leave, the College shall be allowed to charge the employee retroactively for the full premium cost of the health care coverage.
- H. Washington Family and Medical Leave Program

The parties recognize that the Washington State Family and Medical Leave Program (RCW 50A.04) is in effect beginning January 1, 2020 and eligibility for and approval for leave for purposes as described under that Program shall be in accordance with RCW 50A.04. In the event the legislature amends all or part of RCW 50A.04, those amendments are considered by the parties to be incorporated herein. Premium withholding will commence 1/1/2019.

Section 7 Leaves for Illness of Long Duration

When the employee's sick leave is exhausted and the employee is unable to return to service because of personal illness (physical/emotional), or injury not covered by Industrial Insurance Laws of the State of Washington, the employee will be granted leave without pay. The employee, or their designee, shall within ten (10) days of the expiration of their accumulated sick leave contact the College President or designee to arrange a mutually agreeable period of leave, not to exceed the remainder of their current employee contract.

With the recommendation of the employee's physician, an additional one (1) year of leave will, upon request, be granted by the College President or designee for full time faculty.

Section 8 Bereavement Leave

Up to five (5) days, including travel time will be allowed as funeral bereavement leave for each occurrence of a death in the immediate family, which includes spouse or same-sex domestic partner, children, mother, father, sister, brother or the person(s) who the employee considers a parent(s).

- A. Up to two (2) days bereavement leave will be allowed in the case of an in-law, grandparent, grandchild, or anyone who is living with, or is considered part of the family.
- B. Bereavement leave shall not be deducted from the employee's accumulated sick leave.

Section 9 Emergency and Hardship Leave

- A. Emergency-hardship leave requires notification to the supervisor. Leave shall be deducted from the employee's accumulated sick leave balance. Should the employee not have an accumulated balance, such leave shall be leave without pay.
- B. Six (6) days emergency-hardship leave per year deductible from the employee's accumulated sick leave balance and will be available upon request to each employee without loss of pay if demonstrated need and qualifications are established.
- C. Situations for which emergency-hardship leave are used must be an emergency-hardship situation of an unforeseen nature suddenly precipitated necessitating the employee's absence during the work day and must be of such a nature that pre-planning and rescheduling are not possible and could not eliminate the need for such leave during the employee's work day.

Section 10 Personal Convenience Leave

- A. At the beginning of each school year all full-time faculty and adjunct faculty who have worked an average of two-thirds of a full-time load in the previous academic year will be credited with three (3) days of personal convenience leave (24 hours and 18 hours respectively). Employees may use this leave for a purpose they believe to be sufficient to warrant their absence from their assigned responsibilities.
- B. Leave may be also accumulated from one year to the next to partially or fully fund an approved Professional Development Leave, including to cover the employee portion of benefits.
- C. A personal convenience leave day may be used at the discretion of the employee. Personal convenience leave should not be used to extend vacation periods or holidays during the employee's work year, or be the first or last day of the employee's work year or first or last day of the College's students' instructional year without the approval of the appropriate administrator. In addition, employees are urged to not use this leave for days in which their presence on the job, rather than a substitute, is especially critical to the successful functioning of their office, department or program.
- D. An employee planning to use a personal convenience leave day or days will normally notify their supervisor at least two (2) days in advance.

Section 11 Military Reserve/National Guard Active Training Duty

Employees will be granted twenty-one (21) days of paid leave in accordance with RCW 38.40.060, as currently enacted or hereafter amended, to report to active duty, when called, or to take part in active training duty in such manner and at such time as may be ordered to active duty or active training duty in the National Guard or the Army, Navy, Air Force, Marines, Coast Guard, or any other organized reserve or armed forces of the United States.

- A. The employee shall notify the College at least five (5) days prior to the beginning date of the training duty leave. A copy of orders from the military, whenever received, shall be submitted to Human Resources for audit review.
- B. For military leave thereafter, employees will be granted leave and reinstatement rights as provided by RCW 73.16.33, as currently enacted or hereby amended, and applicable federal law. Reinstatement does not apply to adjunct faculty.

C. A maximum of two (2) years educational experience will be granted year for year, to the nearest whole year, for active duty service in the Washington National Guard, the Armed Forces of the United States, or the United States Public Health Service. The returnee must furnish a receipt of an honorable discharge, report of separation, certificate of satisfactory service, or other proof of having satisfactorily complete their service.

Any employee who interrupts their career shall receive up to two (2) equivalent year(s) of service credit towards movement on the salary schedule when they return to employment.

Section 12 Civil Duty

A. <u>Jury Duty</u> An employee, who is away from their duties because of jury duty, shall be paid for such time lost at their normal rate of pay. An employee will be allowed to retain any compensation paid for jury duty service. The employee shall furnish the College President or designee with supporting documentation.

The employee shall report to work each day they (1) are not actually assigned to jury duty, or (2) are not requested to remain available for jury duty during the work day, or (3) is not assigned to jury duty after reporting but is released in sufficient time to allow them to report for the second half of that employee's work day.

B. <u>Subpoena Leave</u> An employee will be granted subpoena leave as may be required by the subpoena, and shall be paid their regular salary less any compensation received for their services, excluding transportation and per diem expenses in all cases including when the College subpoenas the employee.

Payment will not be made when the employee, the Union or fellow employee is the plaintiff or defendant in such action and such action is against the College. This exception shall not apply when the employee is named as defendant due to the performance of their duties.

The College President or designee may extend the definition and intent of civic duty leave on an individual basis, in consultation with the Union President.

Section 13 Professional Development Leave

The College recognizes that appropriate professional development in a variety of fields or other situations may contribute to the professional growth of an employee and that value can accrue to the College when an employee renews and/or updates professional qualifications, improves teaching and learning, or assumes teaching responsibilities in a foreign country or a substantially different cultural environment. To that end, the College may grant an unpaid leave for professional development purposes.

To be eligible, the faculty member must be full-time and have completed seven continuous years of full-time service. Requests for professional development leave may be for up to one (1) year. The College may, when it deems it appropriate and if requested, grant a second year of unpaid professional development leave.

Requests for professional development leave should be made two quarters in advance and must include a detailed description of the leave activity:

- a. Length of leave and return date of faculty
- b. How the leave will support the college's mission, vision and values
- c. How the leave and knowledge developed will benefit the college, department, students and self
- d. A plan to present the experience with other instructors, students and the college community as appropriate

Accrued and unused personal convenience leave may be used to fund or partially fund said leave, including the employee portion of benefits.

Faculty will continue to accrue seniority and salary schedule movement during a professional experience leave, up to a period of two years.

Section 14 Uniformed Service Shared Leave Pool

The Uniformed Service Shared Leave Pool (USSLP) was created so that state employees who are called to service in the uniformed services will be able to maintain a level of compensation and employee benefits consistent with the amount they would have received had they remained in active state service.

The pool was also created to allow general government and higher education employees to voluntarily donate their leave to be used by any eligible employee who has been called to service in the uniformed services. Employee participation is voluntary at all times and will be consistent with state law (RCW 41.04.685) and College Policy. The Military Department, in consultation with the Department of Personnel and the Office of Financial Management, is responsible for administering the USSLP.

Section 15 Domestic Violence Leave

In accordance with the Domestic Violence Leave Act, <u>RCW 49.76</u>, leave without pay, including intermittent leave, will be granted to an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking. Family members of a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking will be granted leave without pay to help the victim obtain treatment or seek help. Family member for the purpose of domestic violence leave includes child, spouse, state registered domestic partner, as defined by <u>RCWs 26.60.020</u> and <u>26.60.030</u>, parent, parent-in law, grandparent or a person the employee is dating. The Employer may require verification from the employee requesting leave. Faculty may also use paid sick leave, or shared leave, if available.

Requests for domestic violence leave will be submitted in writing to the Executive Director of Human Resources with as much notice as possible. However, when an employee cannot provide advance notice due to emergency or unforeseen circumstances related to domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking, the employee or employee's designee must give notice by the end of the first day of leave taken. The College will approve or deny leave without pay requests, in writing, within fourteen (14) calendar days when practicable and will include the reason for denial.

Section 16 Faith or Conscience Holidays

Pursuant to <u>RCW 1.16.050</u>, employees are entitled to up to two unpaid holidays per calendar year for reasons of faith or conscience, or an organized activity conducted under the auspices of a religious denomination, church or religious activity. Employees must provide at least two (2) days' notice and document their absence via an approved time and leave form.

Requests will be granted provided the employee's absence will not impose an undue hardship on the College as defined by WAC 82-56-020.

ARTICLE 8

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION

Section 1 Professional Development

- A. The College and union recognize that the improvement of instructional programs and teaching methods take adequate time and concentrated effort. The College recognizes the need for faculty to remain current in their field. The College will make every effort to provide appropriate funding and release time so faculty may take part in professional development activities and agrees to support attendance at educational meetings, seminars, conferences, workshops, etc., as part of approved faculty professional development plans and as funds allow. Each fiscal year, a pool of up to \$36,000 will be available for faculty members for professional development related expenses. These funds will be distributed through a mini-grant process that will be approved by the Vice President of Instruction.
- B. The College agrees to reimburse the employee for tuition for approved teacher training courses offered by other institutions of higher education. Approval must be obtained from the Dean prior to enrolling in the course and reimbursement will be authorized only upon successful completion (grade of 2.0 or 'C', or 'P' for pass/fail course). If Renton Technical College offers the class and

the employee elects to take it at another institution, the College will only reimburse up to the amount of the Renton Technical College class tuition. With the approval of the Vice President for Administration and Finance and their supervisor, instructors may enroll in any class offered by the College (subject to space availability) and the College agrees to waive tuition.

- C. The College recognizes the value of participation in professional organizations. The College agrees to pay for or reimburse full-time employees up to five hundred dollars (\$500.00) annually for each membership in supervisor approved, program-related organizations. A membership that exceeds \$500.00 will require approval of the Vice President of Instruction or designee.
- D. As faculty are required to maintain credentials for instruction, payment of costs associated with obtaining or maintaining a professional license or certification shall be administered consistent with state Office of Financial Management criteria, as follows:

Upon Hiring: if the license or certification is a minimum requirement to hold the position, the College cannot pay any expenses related to the cost of the license or certificate.

Current Faculty: If the license or certificate is not a minimum requirement to hold the position, but is a preferred qualification in the determination of the appointing authority and is used strictly for and to the benefit of the College, then the College may pay maintenance related fees, including required professional association membership fees.

All Faculty: If training is needed to maintain the license or certificate, then the college may pay for the training provided as long as

- 1. The training is directly related to the job requirements, and
- 2. The training maintains or enhances the employee's work-related skills specific to that job requirement.

The College shall not pay examination costs.

- E. The College and Union recognize that the improvement of instructional programs and teaching methods take adequate time and concentrated effort. As part of the annual faculty employment agreement, faculty are expected to participate in the training and in-service days that will be identified on the Calendar, Appendix B, for each school year. Mandatory professional development activities will be held throughout the academic year. Training during Opening Week will be held during the calendar stipulated in-service and campus state/federal training days. Optional professional development opportunities may be held throughout the year.
- F. Time spent attending professional development activities on non-contracted days will not be considered compensated time.

Section 2 Evaluation - Overview

Evaluation criteria and procedures have been established for the express purpose of encouraging, achieving, improving, and maintaining excellence in the area of effective and purposeful classroom/laboratory instruction.

The effectiveness and quality of an institution's total education program depends upon the presence of a competent faculty. Further, it is the institution's obligation in consulting with faculty, to evaluate on a continuing basis, the performance of its faculty members and to provide for their development. The process of faculty evaluation shall include multiple indices for use by administration for the evaluation of faculty performance.

Section 3 Criteria for Evaluation

The criteria for evaluation of professional/technical faculty shall be the Skill Standards. Effective Fall 2025, all other faculty will use the modified Skill Standards.

Section 4 Implementation

A. Faculty on full time appointments, except for tenure-candidate faculty shall be evaluated:

- 1. Quarterly, by students enrolled in program(s) or classes for credit using the appropriate Student Evaluation form. This evaluation tool shall not apply to counselors or librarians;
- 2. Annually, by self-evaluation;
- 3. Annually, the dean, director or designee will conduct at least one (1) observation and write an observation report based on at least 30 minutes of observation time.
- 4. At least every five (5) years, by the appropriate dean or vice president.
- B. All tenure candidate employees shall be evaluated as described in <u>Article 6, Section 16, H.5</u> (Tenure).
- C. All adjunct employees who instruct in program(s) or classes for credit shall be evaluated as follows:
 - Twice within the first four quarters of teaching, the appropriate dean, director or designee shall observe the employee's teaching for at least 30 minutes and discuss their observation report with the employee during the same quarter;
 - Every two years, by self-evaluation and by the dean, director or designee. This bi-annual review will also include an observation for at least 30 minutes and subsequent observation report;
 - 3. Quarterly, by students.

Section 5 Faculty Evaluation of Immediate Supervisor

For the purpose of professional development, the Vice President of Instruction may request employee performance feedback for their dean or director. This feedback shall be anonymous, if requested by the employee, and will be delivered to the dean or director in the spirit of performance improvement. Under no circumstances shall retaliation be permitted nor condoned as a result of employee feedback.

Section 6 Disputes

An employee and their supervisor shall make reasonable efforts to resolve any dispute that arises from implementation of the evaluation process. If not resolved, the employee may appeal to the Vice President for Instruction within twenty (20) working days following the date of the evaluation. Before making any decision, the Vice President of Instruction may consult with the Union and Human Resources to try to resolve the dispute. Employees, if they feel necessary, may add a rebuttal to the evaluation for placement in their personnel file.

Although the evaluation process itself may be grieved, contents contained in the evaluation itself, is not subject to the grievance process under Article 12.

Section 7 Performance Improvement Plans

Nothing in <u>Article 8</u> shall be construed to prevent the College from initiating a performance improvement plan as deemed appropriate. In the event an employee is placed on a performance improvement plan, the plan will contain at a minimum:

- A. Identification of the area(s) of concern or deficiency(ies)
- B. Expectations
- C. Resources available
- D. Timelines for implementation and/or completion of identified activities
- E. Start and completion date

ARTICLE 9 PROFESSIONAL TECHNICAL CERTIFICATION

Certification is a condition of continued employment for all full-time professional technical faculty and for adjunct professional technical faculty that meet the criteria under <u>WAC 131-16-092-093</u>.

A. Initial Certification

Upon hire, eligible faculty will be issued initial professional-technical certification by the Vice President of Instruction. Initial certification lasts three years. The initial certification process includes documentation of a professional development plan which identifies priorities for professional growth. An initial certification is not renewable for professional-technical instructors.

B. Standard Certification

Standard professional-technical certification will be issued by the Vice President of Instruction upon completion of the requirements for initial certification. Standard certification must be renewed on a five-year cycle. To maintain standard certification, professional-technical instructors must develop and complete a professional development plan. The Professional Development Plan will include one activity from each of the below areas and two additional activities in either area of Discipline and Pedagogy. All activities identified in the professional development plan must be completed within the five year period.

- C. Approved Professional Development activities fall into three (3) areas:
 - 1. Governance: Activities which support the activities of the college.
 - 2. Discipline: Activities that support the faculty members' professional development.
 - 3. Pedagogy: Activities which support excellence in instruction and curriculum design

services to students, and information literacy.

D. Activity Completion

Each faculty member is responsible for documenting the completion of professional development activities that satisfy their professional development plan. The faculty member shall provide this documentation to the Office of Instruction. The Vice President of Instruction is responsible for certification.

ARTICLE 10 INSTRUCTION

Section 1 Classroom Management

In the maintenance of a sound learning environment, the College shall expect acceptable behavior on the part of all Renton Technical College students. Classroom management and expectations shall be applied fairly and consistently regardless of age, gender, gender identity, marital status, race, creed, sexual orientation, genetic information, pregnancy, domicile, political affiliation, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or the presence or perception of presence of any sensory, metal or physical disability (unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification)..

The authority of instructors to use prudent classroom management techniques for the safety and well-being of students and instructors is supported by the College President and the Board.

In instances where student behavior may warrant referral to the Student Conduct Code and Hearing Procedures, potentially resulting in disciplinary sanctions as defined in the appropriate sections of the WAC, any such behavior disruptions shall be carefully documented, specifying dates and times of occurrence and specific acts.

The applicable federal, state and local laws and College rules, regulations and procedures relative to student conduct will be made available to all employees on the College's website.

Section 2 Grading Practices

Grading criteria are determined by the instructor. These criteria and how grades are achieved must be shared, in writing, with the student on the first day a course is taught. Grading policies must be on file and approved by the instructor's dean.

No assigned grade will be changed other than by the instructor unless the student submits a Grade Appeal and it is determined collaboratively with the dean and faculty member that:

- A. Errors were made in calculating or posting the official RTC grade, or;
- B. The instructor did not follow the grading criteria outlined in the course syllabus, or;
- C. Grading criteria were not uniformly applied.

Should the appeal fail to be resolved by the dean and faculty member to the student's satisfaction, the decision shall be made by the Vice President of Instruction, in consultation with the dean and faculty. The decision made by the Vice President of Instruction shall be final.

Section 3 Instructional Aides

The need for instructional aides shall be evaluated on an individual program basis. The determination whether to utilize an instructional aide shall be made by administration, utilizing suggestions from program instructor(s) and the appropriate advisory committee, if any.

Section 4 Class Size

The maximum number of students per class shall be determined by the number of training stations, safety factors and individual instructional requirements of the specific occupation or trade being taught. The determination as to the number of training stations in each new or expanded program shall be made by administration, utilizing suggestions from program instructors and appropriate advisory committees.

Clustering is the combining of different item numbers with suitably similar curricula during a specific quarter in consultation with the affected faculty member. Workload in a cluster will be factored on the highest credit class. Faculty and their dean will discuss no later than seven days prior to the start of a quarter whether clustering is required to ensure student outcomes, sufficient enrollment, to allow for program teach-outs, meet safety requirements and to manage faculty workload.

The Labor Management Committee will review contracts issued for clustered classes, as requested,

Section 5 Student Testing

At the instructor's option, the last student day of each quarter may be identified as a testing day. If elected the testing or instructional activity shall continue for no less than one-half ($\frac{1}{2}$) day.

Section 6 FERPA

Faculty will follow the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA) relating to the protection and release of information regarding students.

ARTICLE 11

ASSIGNMENTS AND REASSIGNMENTS

Section 1 Assignments

Employees will normally be assigned initially by the College President or designee to positions for which their preparation, certification, experience, and aptitude fit them. They may not be assigned, except temporarily and for good cause, outside the scope of their certificates or their major or minor field of study.

Section 2 Reassignments

The reassignment of faculty shall be made by the College President or designee. Employees being reassigned shall be notified of the reassignment, with an explanation prior to the effective date of the reassignment.

Reassignment of employees shall be consistent with College procedures and shall not affect their seniority or tenure.

Section 3 Compensation for Canceled Classes

Adjunct Faculty (excluding full-time faculty who are teaching beyond the workload) shall be compensated for two (2) hours' time at the substitution rate if the course is cancelled within three business days prior to the start of the course. Adjunct faculty whose course is cancelled after the course start date shall be compensated for the percentage of the course taught. In the event an adjunct faculty member is reassigned to a class with the same course number, no additional compensation beyond the course salary will be received.

ARTICLE 12 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

Section 1 Purpose

The purpose of these procedures is to provide for the orderly and expeditious adjustments of grievances. As used in these grievance procedures, "grievance" means a claim of an employee alleging misinterpretation or inequitable application of provisions of the contract or specific provisions of policy, rules and/or regulations of the College. "Grievance" also means a claim of the Union alleging misinterpretation or inequitable application of the contract provisions provided in ARTICLE 5, UNION RIGHTS, and such grievance may be initiated at the STEP 3 level.

The parties recognize the importance of prompt resolution of such employee problems at the level closest to the problem through informal discussions and resolution between those involved or, if necessary, with the assistance of a neutral party. In the interest of fairness to all parties involved, it is agreed that no reprisals shall be taken against persons involved in grievance proceedings. Procedures for handling grievances shall be of three types:

- A. Grievances alleging violations of this negotiated contact shall be processed using STEPs ONE, TWO, and FIVE as noted in Section 3. Utilization of STEP THREE is optional.
- B. Grievances regarding the interpretation and application of specific College policies, rules and/or regulations shall be processed using STEPs ONE, TWO, and FOUR as noted in Section 3. Utilization of STEP THREE is optional.
- C. Complaints regarding matters other than this contract or College policies and rules/regulations will be processed using only STEPs ONE and TWO as noted in Section 3.

Section 2 General Provisions

- A. Both parties encourage employees and supervisors to discuss and resolve concerns on an informal basis. If this cannot resolve the issue(s) the employee may proceed with the grievance or complaint.
- B. <u>Right to Representation</u> Union representatives have a right to be present for any meetings, hearings, appeals, or other proceedings relative to grievances which have been formally presented. Administrative meetings that do not include employee or employee witness contacts and which are purely of a management nature are not included in this provision.
- C. <u>Freedom of Employee to Act</u> Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any employee having a grievance to discuss the matter via administrative channels and to have the problem adjusted without the intervention of the Union; nor shall any clause contained herein

be construed as limiting the right of any employee having the grievance to take appropriate action under any statutory guarantee or provision. However, the Union may be in attendance at these discussions. Any proposed disposition of the grievance shall be consistent with the terms of this contract. A grievant may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by himself/herself, or a person of their own choosing, or at their option, by Union representatives selected by the Union. If an aggrieved party chooses not to be represented by the Union, the Union, nevertheless, shall be given timely notice in order to have the opportunity to be present and to state its views prior to the final recommendation for resolution of the grievance.

D. <u>Prompt Action</u> Grievances shall be processed as rapidly as possible; the number of days indicated at each step shall be considered as maximum and every effort shall be made to expedite the process. In initiating a grievance, the grievant will present the grievance in writing on the appropriate grievance form to the immediate supervisor within fifteen (15) days after the employee knew or demonstrably should have known the action or inaction occurred.

E. Time Limits

- 1. Time limits may be extended or waived by mutual written consent. If the stipulated time limits are not met by the College, the grievance may proceed to the next step.
- 2. If the stipulated time limits are not met by the grievant, the grievance shall be deemed dropped and will not be reviewed at any higher College administrative level.
- 3. All days referred to shall be considered to be the aggrieved employee's scheduled working days, provided that any grievance (1) filed just prior to the end of the employee work year, or (2) filed after the end of the work year regarding a grievable matter which occurred prior to the end of the work year, or (3) filed after the end of the work year regarding a matter which occurred after the end of the work year, shall be processed counting days as Monday through Friday excluding holidays.
- F. <u>Required Forms</u> Grievances and their resolution must be filed on the appropriate forms which will be provided by the College.
- G. <u>Class Action Grievances</u> If a number of employees have the same grievance, their grievances may be consolidated for hearing and resolution purposes into a class action grievance for all involved upon the consent of the grievant, Union, and College.
- H. Requirements for Hearings Whenever possible, hearings will be scheduled during non-student contact time. If the hearing is scheduled during class contact time, the College will provide a substitute at College expense for the grievant, the observers, the representative of the Union and reasonably requested witnesses. Witnesses will be present only when testifying. Nothing below, with the exception of STEP FIVE, Binding Arbitration shall be considered to in any way prohibit, restrict or preclude the rights of parties to resort to legal adjudication for resolution of disputes. No new documentary evidence or witnesses will be introduced at the arbitration level hearing by

the Union or the College unless made known to the grievant(s), the Union and the College at least three (3) days prior to the hearing and it is mutually agreed that they be introduced or either party is directed to do so by the arbitrator.

- I. <u>Availability of Forms</u> Upon request, a supply of forms shall be provided to the Union. Employees may obtain a grievance form from their supervisor, Human Resources or the Union.
- J. As verified by a signed and dated form, the grievance shall be presented to the appropriate person for the step being used. The appropriate person at STEP ONE is the grievant's supervisor, and at STEPs TWO through FIVE it is the Executive Director of Human Resources. Should either of these people be unavailable, the grievance may be presented to another vice president or to Human Resources.
- K. The written grievance shall include the following:
 - 1. The nature of the grievance, including the specific date, time, and location that the alleged grievance occurred; a description of the events, action or in-action, which led to the

- grievance (this description is intended to summarize the events and is not intended to argue the merits of the grievance); and the names of all witnesses, if known;
- The sections of the contract or College rule/policy allegedly violated;
- 3. The specific remedy sought.
- L. Allegations not introduced at STEP ONE shall not be admissible by the grievant at any subsequent step of the process being used. In an effort to resolve grievances at the earliest stage possible, the Union agrees to provide the College with any evidence and/or documentation it has in support of the grievance as soon as possible in the process or as it becomes demonstrably evident.
- M. The College President may designate another person to meet with the grievant and the Union at STEP TWO.

Section 3 Grievance Steps

- A. STEP ONE: SUPERVISOR
 - 1. The grievance will be presented in writing on Grievance Form I to the immediate supervisor within fifteen (15) days after the employee knew or demonstrably should have known that the action or inaction occurred. The grievance form will be signed and dated by the parties at the time of receipt by the immediate supervisor, and will identify the item(s) of the contract deemed violated and the specific resolution sought. One copy of Grievance Form I shall be retained by the grievant and the remaining copies distributed by the immediate supervisor as follows: the original to the immediate supervisor and one copy each to the Union and the College President or designee.
 - 2. Within ten (10) days after receipt of Grievance Form I, the immediate supervisor will respond to the grievant in writing on Grievance Form II. Copies of their response shall be distributed by the immediate supervisor as follows: one copy each for the Union, the College President or designee, immediate supervisor, and the original to the grievant. If a grievance arose from or can only be resolved by a higher level of supervision, the immediate supervisor may, with the concurrence of the College President or designee, have their response prepared by the appropriate College supervisor. In these cases, the appropriate College supervisor may replace the immediate supervisor in any further proceedings.

B. STEP TWO: PRESIDENT

- In the event the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at STEP ONE, they may within five (5) days of the receipt of Grievance Form II refer their written grievance on Grievance Form III to the College President or designee for resolution. One copy of Grievance Form III shall be kept by the grievant and the College President or designee shall distribute the remaining copies as follows: one each to the Union and the immediate supervisor.
- 2. The College President or designee shall schedule a meeting to take place within fifteen (15) days of acknowledged receipt of Grievance Form III. If the grievance involves a charge of discrimination, the College President may extend the timelines of this level up to ten (10) working days to allow the College Discrimination Compliance Officer time to make a separate investigation presenting the findings and recommendations to the College President or designee for consideration in the grievance hearing resolution at this level. The grievant and Union shall receive and acknowledge notification of said meeting at least five (5) days prior to the date of the meeting. Persons present at the College President or designee meeting may include only the following: the grievant(s), the immediate supervisor (or appropriate College supervisor), a representative each of the Union and the College, one observer each for the grievant and immediate supervisor, those witness(s) who will provide relevant testimony regarding the grievance issue and the person selected to hold the conference on behalf of the College President or designee. Witnesses will be present only while testifying, unless they are also included in the participant list above.

3. The College President or designee shall provide a written response and decision to the grievant within ten (10) days following the College President or designee meeting. Distribution by the College President or designee of the response shall be as follows: one copy each to the Union, immediate supervisor, and the original to the grievant.

C. STEP THREE: NON-BINDING MEDIATION

Non-binding grievance mediation is an optional and voluntary part of the grievance resolution process. When grievance mediation is invoked, the contractual time limit for moving the grievance to arbitration shall be delayed for the period of mediation.

- 1. In the event the grievance is not resolved with the disposition of the grievance at STEP TWO, the grievant and the Union may mutually, within five (5) work days of the receipt of the College President's findings and recommendations, request mediation. If management agrees that the grievance is suitable for mediation, the parties shall submit a joint request to the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service or the Public Employment Relations Commission for assignment of a mediator. Mediation shall be completed within thirty (30) working days of the submission of the joint request.
- 2. The mediation process shall be informal. Rules of evidence shall not apply and no record shall be made of the proceedings. Both sides shall be provided ample opportunity to present evidence and argument to support their case. The mediator may meet with the parties in joint session or in separate caucuses.
- 3. At the request of both parties, the mediator shall issue a recommendation for settlement. Either party may request the mediator to assess how an arbitrator might rule in this case.
- 4. The grievant shall be present at the grievance mediation proceedings. If the grievance is resolved, the grievant shall sign a statement agreeing to accept the outcome. Unless the parties agree otherwise, the outcome shall not be precedential.
- 5. If the grievance is not resolved and is subsequently moved to arbitration, such proceedings shall be de novo. Nothing said or done by the parties or the mediator during the grievance mediation with respect to their positions concerning resolution of offers of settlement may be used or referred to during arbitration.

D. STEP FOUR: HEARING OFFICER

In the event the employee is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at STEP TWO, they may within ten (10) days of the receipt of the President's findings and recommendations mutually with the Union, submit the grievance to a hearing officer for resolution within the following guidelines:

- 1. The Union and the College will each select a hearing officer within twenty (20) days of ratification of this contract. The two (2) hearing officers selected will choose a third officer to serve. The three (3) officers will constitute the hearing officer panel from which an officer will be drawn for a grievance hearing. In making their respective selections both the College and the Union and the officers they select will choose local, Renton area community persons who have exhibited an interest in community and/or school affairs. In the event the Union and the College selected officers cannot mutually select a third hearing officer within ten (10) days, the Union and the College will each submit three (3) additional names. All six (6) names shall be placed into a proper receptacle and one name shall be drawn by lot by the President.
- 2. The names of these selected hearing officers will be placed on a list by means of a drawing to be held by the College and Union not later than thirty (30) days after the ratification of this contract. Copies of this list of hearing officers will be available in the College and Union offices and elsewhere, if desired by either party.

Hearing officers for a particular grievance will be selected in rotation in order of placement on the hearing officer list. If a selected hearing officer cannot fulfill a given hearing assignment, the next person on the list will be selected.

3. The selected hearing officer shall schedule a hearing to take place not more than fifteen (15) days nor less than ten (10) days after their designation as hearing officer or by agreement. The grievant, Union and the College will be notified of the meeting not less than five (5) days before the scheduled date of the meeting.

Each side will be given broad latitude in the placing of evidence and calling of witnesses and will provide the hearing officer and each other with a tentative list of witnesses at least two (2) days before the scheduled date of the hearing.

Persons present at the hearing shall include only the following: the grievant, the immediate supervisor, one representative each of the Union and the College, one observer each for the grievant and immediate supervisor, those witnesses who will provide relevant testimony regarding the grievance issue and the hearing officer. The hearing officer shall conduct the hearing in an informal non-legal atmosphere.

The hearing officer will be given broad powers to call witnesses, obtain data, examine records, etc., in an attempt to reach an equitable resolution of the grievance. They, however, must respect the confidentiality of such records and disclose only such information as required to substantiate their findings.

- 4. Within fifteen (15) days of the hearing the hearing officer will submit written findings and recommendations to the Board. Copies of their findings and recommendations will also be submitted to the Union and the grievant.
- 5. At the first regular Board meeting following the receipt by the Board of the findings and recommendations of the hearing officer, the Board will take formal resolution action relative to the grievant; provided such findings and recommendations have been received at least five (5) days prior to said Board meeting. Copies of Board action will be sent to the grievant, the hearing officer and the Union within five (5) days after such action.
- 6. The fees and expenses of the hearing officer shall be shared equally by the College and the Union in the STEP THREE grievances mutually initiated by the College and the Union. All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them, and neither party shall be responsible for the expenses of witnesses called by the other (EXCEPT the College shall be responsible for necessary release time of employees as provided in the introductory language to these grievance procedures). Compensation for hearing officers shall be determined and stipulated prior to final agreement of the roster, but in no cases shall be more than fifteen dollars (\$15.00) an hour.

It shall be understood that the utilization of hearing officers is in part an attempt by the College and the Union to utilize local community resource persons, who ideally would regard service, at least in part, as a contribution of their time as a community service.

E. STEP FIVE: BINDING ARBITRATION

In the event the employee is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at STEP TWO, the grievant and the Union may mutually, within ten (10) days of the receipt of the College President's findings and recommendations, submit the grievance to the American Arbitration Association for arbitration under their rules and within the following guidelines:

- 1. If there is mutual agreement between the College and the Union, arbitration may be held under the expedited rules of the American Arbitration Association.
- 2. If a question of arbitrability is raised, this will be determined before any consideration will be given to the substantive matters of the grievance.
- 3. The arbitrator shall limit their decision strictly to disputes involving the application, interpretation or alleged violation of specific articles and/or section of the contract and the expressed terms therein, but they shall be without power or authority to establish or adjust salary schedules. This stipulation shall not prohibit the arbitrator from making interpretations or judgments regarding application of the salary schedules as they have been negotiated and agreed upon. The arbitrator's decision shall be in conformity with all

- existing laws. This shall not preclude the right to appeal to a court of law for an enforcement order.
- 4. There shall be no appeal from the arbitrator's decision if it is within the scope of their authority, except those grievances involving charges of discrimination in which cases the grievant may further pursue their complaint to any appropriate agency(ies). It shall be final and binding on the Union, the employee(s) involved, the administration, and the Board.
- 5. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the College and the Union. All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them, and neither party shall be responsible for the expenses of witnesses called by the other (EXCEPT the College shall be responsible for necessary released time of employees as provided in the introductory language to these grievance procedures).

ARTICLE 13

PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION

Section 1 Basic Salaries (Full-time Employees)

- A. The basic salaries of full-time employees are set forth in Appendix A, Section 1.
- B. New full-time instructors, counselors and librarians shall initially be placed on the salary schedule at Step 1. Librarians and Counselors will receive an annual contract as per Article 6, Sections 8 and 10.A.1. Initial placement shall not exceed Step 1 without approval of the President of the College, in consultation with the RFT President and only to a maximum of Step 2.
- C. Employees previously placed in accordance with the provisions of the contract in effect at the time of such original initial placement will be moved to the appropriate step, in accordance to the schedule set forth in Appendix A, Section 1.
- D. Re-hired full-time employees who return to a full-time faculty position within two (2) years from their separation date will be placed at the same step as when they left.
- E. Movement The salary increases for employees resulting from the application of the provisions of this section are limited or become operative only as provided in <u>ARTICLE 3</u>, <u>Section 2</u> and
 - 1. Effective July 1, 2024, after initial placement, one (1) step at a time will be granted to each eligible full-time employee who successfully completes one full academic year of service as outlined on the salary schedule in an assigned full-time faculty position or professional development leave. Steps are only adjusted at the beginning of each academic year.
 - Any full-time employee who interrupts their career at Renton Technical College for honorable service in the Washington National Guard, the Armed Forces of the United States, or the United States Public Health Service shall receive up to two (2) equivalent year(s) of service towards movement in accordance with Section E.1., above, when they return to employment at the College.
- F. Moonlight and summer quarter compensation for full-time faculty will be paid at Step 2 of the adjunct salary schedule (<u>Appendix A</u>, Section 2).
- G. Moonlight contracts will not be issued if release time is granted as part of the regular load.
- H. Co-op courses will be calculated at a factor of .66. Please refer to <u>Article 6 Section 10.C.</u> (Clinical or Co-op Program Study).

Section 2 Adjunct Employees and Adjunct Salaries

A. Adjunct employees in career technical, general education and college/career pathways courses on a quarter to quarter basis shall be paid according to Appendix A, Section 2.

- B. Associate faculty and full-time faculty assigned to additional adjunct (moonlight) courses will be paid at Step 2. (Associate Faculty must meet the guidelines as set forth in <u>Article 6 Section</u> 10.B.2. and 3.)
- C. Adjunct Program Coordinators (as determined under <u>ARTICLE 6</u>, <u>Section 10.C.</u>) will be paid at Step 3 on Appendix A, Section 2. Associate level Adjunct Program Coordinators will be paid at Step 4 on Appendix A, Section 2.
- D. Courses taught as contract training, continuing/community education, and professional development instruction may not be paid off the adjunct schedule.
- E. In no instance will adjunct employees be utilized to fill positions that could or should be filled by full-time employees in accordance with the other provisions of <u>ARTICLE 6</u>, <u>Section 10.A.</u>
- F. Full-time instructors and adjunct instructors may annually make their interest in moonlight and adjunct teaching assignments (including summer quarter) known to their immediate supervisor by April 15th of the previous academic year. Such written expression of interest will be considered by the appropriate supervisor when making teaching assignments throughout the year. However, the supervisor retains the right to make such assignments as deemed necessary and in the best interest of the college.
- G. All Guided Practice instructional credits for adjunct faculty and full-time faculty who moonlight will be paid from the adjunct salary schedule with an additional pay factor of 1.33.
 - 1. For example and using Adjunct pay step 1, a 5 credit Biology course that contains of 4 credits theory and 1 credit guided practice will be paid at 4 credits theory (\$1,058 * 4 = \$4,232) and 1 credit guided practice at the 1.33 rate (\$1,407 * 1 = \$1,407). Workload for this 5 credit Biology course remains at 5 credits. Another example, a 7 credit Electrical Systems (AUTC 117) course in Automotive contains 3 credits theory and 4 credits guided practice. The 3 credits theory will be paid at \$1,058 * 3 = \$3,174. The 4 credits guided practice will be paid at \$1,407 * 4 = \$5,629. Workload for this 7 credit course remains at 7 credits.
 - Guided Practice instruction includes but is not limited to labs, studios, shops, computermediated learning, hands-on projects, or other skill building activities. Clinical hours and simulations which require on-site supervision at health care facilities by faculty during all student hours will be paid at the guided practice rate.
- H. Adjunct faculty may be compensated at the non-instructional hourly rate of pay as noted in Appendix A for meeting participation.

Section 3 Degree Stipends

Full-time and adjunct faculty who possess or earn a master's, or doctoral degree are eligible to receive a degree stipend payment each academic year. Adjunct faculty degree stipends are prorated based on a percentage of full-time teaching load per quarter (summer quarter excluded).

The degree stipend does not become part of the employee's base pay. One (1) degree stipend will be provided at the highest degree level for each academic year. The stipend may only be paid for earned degrees beyond degrees already attained. For example, an individual who already has a master's degree would not receive a stipend for subsequently earning a second master's degree. Official transcripts from a regionally accredited institutions must be provided to Human Resources to qualify for the stipend; stipends will not be applied retroactively. Adjustments are only made at the beginning of the next annual contract (full-time faculty) or quarterly contract (adjunct faculty).

Section 4 Health and Welfare Benefits

- A. The College agrees to make available to eligible employees, group medical, dental, life, and other appropriate insurance programs consistent with the rules and regulations of the State Health Care Authority and as funded by the legislature.
- B. For the purposes of <u>Section 4.A</u>, an eligible employee is defined as:
 - 1. Any employee who meets the eligibility requirements of the State Health Care Authority.

- 2. Adjunct employees who are not eligible for benefits may continue to apply the amount designated for health and welfare dollars in accordance with Appendix A, Section 2, to an outside plan of their choice.
- C. Voluntary Employee Benefits Association (VEBA)
 - The College shall make available to eligible employees a VEBA plan to allow employees, upon retirement, to convert sick leave into a medical reimbursement plan pursuant to <u>RCW</u> <u>28B.50.553</u> and College policy and procedures. This conversion is a four-to-one ratio, meaning 25% of an employee's accrued and unused sick leave balance is paid into a VEBA account.
 - 2. Faculty may also convert accrued and unused Personal Convenience Leave to VEBA at the same ratio as sick leave, above.
 - 3. As a condition of participation each eligible employee must submit to the College a signed hold harmless agreement complying with <u>RCW 28B.50.553</u>. If an eligible employee fails to sign and submit such agreement to the College, the College will not make sick leave cash-out contributions to the Plan. The eligible employee will not be permitted to participate in the Plan and remunerations for accrued sick leave at retirement shall be forfeited.
 - 4. Funds deposited in the plan will be used for payment of the retiree's documented medical insurance premiums and medical, dental, and vision care expenses not covered by insurance (including co-payments and deductibles) until the account is exhausted.
 - 5. Participation in VEBA will automatically renew each year. However, if one or more members are eligible to retire, the Union may conduct a vote in October to determine participation for the following year. The Union will notify Human Resources in writing, by December 31, if they choose not to participate in the VEBA plan the following year.
 - 6. Upon request, the College will provide the union with a list of members who will be eligible to retire in the following year.
- D. In the event of the inability of an eligible employee to work because of illness or a non-occupational accident, the College will continue payments for eligible employees for a period of up to six (6) months for any month that the employee is in a pay status for at least eight (8) hours per month. The employee may use any available leave, one day per month for the purpose of keeping insurance benefits intact for this period. If the employee desires to continue the benefit of this health/dental plan beyond the six (6) months, they may do so by making the required payments to the Health Care Authority. In either event the employee must actually be incapacitated from work by such illness or non-occupational accident and shall, in fact, not be working elsewhere.

Section 5 Early Retirement Notification

In order to provide for an orderly transition upon the retirement of full-time faculty members, the College will provide a one-time payment to those faculty members who provide a written notice of their intent to retire by January 1 of the current academic year. This notice must be submitted to Human Resources. To be eligible for this stipend, the faculty member must have at least three (3) consecutive years of full-time faculty employment at RTC by January 1 of the current academic year. The effective date of retirement must be the last day of the faculty member's current contract. The payment of a stipend in the amount of \$3,000 (minus applicable taxes) will be made to the employee in a lump sum in their final paycheck.

Instructors whose contracts do not coincide with the academic calendar may make a request to the College President for an alternate timeline. Once the College has received the notice to retire, the retirement cannot be revoked, unless agreed upon by the President.

Section 6 Compensation Improvement

It is the declared intention of Renton Technical College to provide employees with compensation improvement (increments, and base salary percentage increases) from monies authorized by the state legislature and allocated and approved by the State Board for Community and Technical Colleges. It must

be clearly understood that the College must meet or maintain fair share, salary compliance, and all other requirements as imposed by the state and the State Board for Community and Technical Colleges. The state rules and regulations relative to compensation, as provided to the College, will be applied to the compensation system. Such compensation improvement shall be "passed through" without additional negotiation.

Section 7 Salary Overpayment Recovery

- A. When the College has determined that an employee has been overpaid wages, the agency will provide written notice, hand delivered or via certified mail, to the employee which will include the following items:
 - 1. The amount of the overpayment,
 - 2. The basis for the claim, and
 - 3. The rights of the employee under the terms of this Agreement.
- B. Method of Payback
 - 1. The employee must choose one of the following options for paying back the overpayment:
 - a. Voluntary wage deduction
 - b. Cash
 - c. Check
 - 2. The employee will have the option to repay the overpayment over a period of time equal to the number of pay periods during which the overpayment was made, unless a longer period is agreed to by the employee and the agency. The payroll deduction to repay the overpayment shall not exceed five percent (5%) of the employee's disposable earnings in a pay period, unless the College and employee agree to an amount that is more than the five percent (5%).
 - 3. If the employee fails to choose one of the three options described above, within the timeframe specified in the agency's written notice of overpayment, the agency will deduct the overpayment owed from the employee's wages. This overpayment recovery will take place over a period of time equal to the number of pay periods during which the overpayment was made.
 - 4. Any overpayment amount still outstanding at separation of employment will be deducted from their final pay.
- C. Appeal Rights

Any dispute concerning the occurrence or amount of the overpayment will be resolved through the grievance procedure in Article 12.

Section 8 Salary Correction

When the college discovers an employee has been underpaid, the college will correct the employee's compensation no later than the following pay period.

Section 9 Additional Compensation

Additional compensation should be minimized with certain exceptions such as grant funded projects, work that is truly out of the scope of one's position, professional development paid by Perkins, and special projects approved (by the VPI). Additional compensation should only be provided for pre-approved work performed above and beyond those duties and responsibilities as outlined under Article 6 Section 10.

- A. Curriculum development will be compensated up to \$600 per credit (up to a max of seven credits per course) for the following:
 - 1. When there is a new program added to the RTC inventory and it requires the curriculum to be developed

2. New courses that are essential to the programming within CCP, Gen Ed and Professional Technical Programs.

B. Program Accreditation

Faculty will meet with their deans to plan and schedule the work to be completed for the accreditation work each year before October 1st of each academic year. The faculty and the dean will clarify the time frame, stipend, and/or the use of release time, if applicable.

For programs that are already accredited, faculty may request a \$1,500 stipend through the VPI in the year that their accreditation is scheduled to be reaccredited. The stipend can either be paid quarterly or in a lump sum at the end of the academic year.

For programs seeking accreditation that the College supports, faculty may request a \$3,000 stipend through the VPI in the year that their accreditation is submitted. The stipend can either be paid quarterly or in a lump sum at the end of the academic year.

Grant work opportunities for college-wide initiatives will be electronically communicated, including deliverables and compensation, for interested faculty to apply for consideration and participation. Exceptions include industry-specific and faculty self-solicited grant opportunities. The appropriate administrator retains right of assignment.

Section 10 Substitutes

If a faculty member judges that the outcomes of a class may be significantly compromised by their absence, and cannot be accommodated by technology or another solution, it may be necessary to hire either a short-term substitute (for periods of less than twenty (20) days), or a long-term substitute (for periods of twenty (20) days or more). Each request requires the approval of the appropriate administrator. Only qualified substitutes, as determined by the appropriate administrator, and if possible, the involved faculty member shall be assigned to teach classes. In either case, the new employee should be informed of the estimated length of their assignment and the temporary employment category, i.e. "substitute" or "replacement" in which they are working.

Short-term substitutes will be compensated at \$48.00 per instructional hour. Long-term substitutes will be compensated from the adjunct salary schedule and may be prorated if needed.

Section 11 Multi-language Stipend

Faculty who utilize multi-language skills (including sign language) to effectively do their job or at the request of the college shall receive an annual stipend of \$500 unless it is an essential job function. Compensable examples of multilingual skills include but may not be limited to: (1) translation to and from English to another language, (2) speaking or interpreting skills in languages other than English, and (3) the use of American Sign Language. Employees hired into positions and assignments for which the bilingual language pay applies shall be subject to the same layoff/recall provisions as non-bilingual employees in the same job classifications.

The request must be pre-approved by the VPI prior to completion of any work.

Section 12 I-BEST Instruction

- A. Full and part-time I-BEST teaching pairs will each be compensated for up to 10 hours of "new team" training at the noninstructional hourly rate. This will be paid every time a new teaching team is formed.
- B. Additionally, the I-BEST teaching pair will each receive compensation for up to 10 hours of collaboration each quarter for the first three quarters in which they are teaching IBEST. Up to five hours per quarter may be compensated thereafter. Compensation will be at the noninstructional hourly rate.

ARTICLE 14

REDUCTION IN WORK FORCE

Section 1 Reduction in Work Force Defined

The term "Reduction in Work Force" as used herein refers to either a separation of full-time employees from employment with the College or a reduction in a full-time appointment, excluding Summer term. Summer term employment is not guaranteed, and shall not be subject to a reduction in work force process.

Section 2 Notification

The College will provide written notice to any affected employee in accordance with appropriate statutes.

Section 3 Procedure

- A. When the College President believes that a reduction-in-force may be necessary, the College President shall consult with interested parties before a final decision is made to determine if other actions are possible. Interested parties shall include the faculty members potentially affected, the Union and the program advisory committee, if applicable.
- B. If, after such consultation, the College President determines that a reduction is necessary, the College President shall recommend to the Board the specific instructional programs or services, or portions thereof, to be reduced. The interested parties shall be notified in writing of the College President's recommendation(s) and shall have the right to appear before the Board before Board action is taken.
- C. Following a vote by the Board determining that a reduction shall take place, the College President shall identify those individuals to be reduced or terminated.
- D. The College will provide written notice to any affected employee in accordance with appropriate statutes.

Section 4 Right to Appeal

- A. Under <u>RCW 34.05.510</u> et seq., the employee may seek judicial review of the Board's action to reduce or terminate an instructional program or service within thirty (30) days of mailing of a letter notifying the employee of the Board's action.
- B. Under <u>WAC 495E-400-060(3)</u> the employee may, within twenty (20) days of the date of written notification of the reduction or elimination of their position, seek a review to determine whether the employee is the proper employee to be reduced or terminated.
- C. Reduction in work force shall not be subject to the grievance process.

Section 5 Sufficient Cause

Sufficient cause for reduction in work force which results in the elimination or reduction of instructional, student services or library program(s) shall include:

- A. Financial emergency declared by the Board;
- B. Financial emergency as defined by RCW 28B.50.873, et seq.
- C. Elimination or reduction of funding; and
- D. Elimination or reduction of program demand, which is the result of (1) the need of industry and (2) student enrollment.

Section 6 Implementation

- A. Each year, the College will forward to the Union a program seniority list. Each full-time faculty shall be ranked in the appropriate program in accordance to tenure and seniority. Any disputes regarding the list shall be submitted within 10 days of publishing.
- B. Seniority shall prevail for employees based on program. Programs shall be those identified in Appendix D of this contract. If new programs are initiated during the duration of this contract, the College will notify the Union and update Appendix D.
- C. Reduction in force shall be conducted in the following order:
 - First Full time probationary faculty in order of seniority.
 - Second Full time tenured faculty in order of seniority.

In applying the above, a full time faculty member shall have the right to displace adjunct faculty who are scheduled to teach courses for which the full time faculty member is qualified.

Section 7 Return from Lay-off

- A. Employees last laid off in a given program shall be the first rehired for that program.
- B. Employees on a lay-off list may apply for any position for which they are qualified and shall be granted an interview.
- C. Employees shall remain in a designated rehiring pool for one (1) year.

ARTICLE 15 NO STRIKE PLEDGE

The Union and the College recognize that strikes may be disruptive to the educational process. The Union and the College subscribe to the principle that every effort will be made to resolve differences by peaceful and appropriate means without interruption of the College operations.

The Union, therefore, agrees that there shall be no strikes or other concerted refusal to work, nor any instigation thereof, by the employees for the duration of this contract. The Union further agrees not to honor, or to encourage its members to honor any strikes, picket lines, or other concerted work stoppages that may be established by any other College employee organization. The College agrees that, for the duration of this Contract, there shall be no employee lockout.

ARTICLE 16 MAINTENANCE OF STANDARDS

None of the contract provisions contained herein will be modified by the College during the contract period, EXCEPT by mutual agreement. The composition of this bargaining unit as established by provisions of Chapter 41.59, and as determined by Public Employee Relations Commission (PERC) during the 1975 76 school year and modified by PERC during the 1978 79 school year, will not be changed during the life of this contract other than as provided for in Chapter 41.59.

ARTICLE 17 CONCLUSION

The parties acknowledge that each has had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any matter deemed a proper subject for negotiations. The results of the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this contract. Therefore, the employer and the Union for the duration of this contract each voluntarily and unqualifiedly agree to waive the right to oblige the other party

to negotiate with respect to any subject or matter covered or not covered in this contract unless mutually agreed otherwise.

This contract constitutes the negotiated agreements between the employer and the Union and supersedes any previous contracts or understandings, whether oral or written, between the parties. In addition, this contract supersedes any rules, regulations, policies, resolutions or practices of the employer which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms.

APPENDIX A

Full-time Faculty 2024-2025

Step	Faculty	Nursing	Librarians/Counselors
1	\$91,750	\$115,062	\$106,183
2	\$91,750	\$115,062	\$106,183
3	\$91,750	\$115,062	\$106,183
4	\$97,347	\$122,081	\$112,288
5	\$98,135	\$123,070	\$113,190
6	\$98,930	\$124,067	\$114,100
7	\$99,731	\$125,072	\$115,017
8	\$100,539	\$126,085	\$115,941
9	\$101,354	\$127,106	\$116,872
10	\$102,175	\$128,136	\$117,811
11	\$103,002	\$129,174	\$118,758
12	\$103,837	\$130,220	\$119,712
13	\$104,678	\$131,275	\$120,674
14	\$105,526	\$132,338	\$121,644
15	\$106,380	\$133,410	\$122,621
16	\$107,242	\$134,491	\$123,606
17	\$108,111	\$135,580	\$124,599
18	\$109,578	\$137,420	\$126,268
Degree Stipends			
Master's	\$967	\$967	\$967
Doctorate	\$1935	\$1935	\$1935

Any employee who has been at step 18 for 5 years shall receive an annual longevity stipend of \$1300.

Adjunct Faculty

Step		Per Credit	Nursing Per Credit
		2024-2025	2024-2025
1	Adjunct	\$1,058	\$1,299
2	Associate Faculty	\$1,165	\$1,429
3	Adjunct Program	\$1,448	
	Coordinator	_	
4	Associate Program	\$1,592	
	Coordinator		

^{**}ADJUNCT DEGREE STIPEND IS BASED ON A QUARTERLY PERCENTAGE OF FULL TIME TEACHING DURING THE ACADEMIC YEAR

Non-Instructional Hourly Rate of Pay = \$42/HR

Adjunct Degree Stipends Examples-Using 2023-24 Amounts

Examples	Quarterly Credits/15 x Annual Stipend/3
Fall Quarter Degree Stipend	(5/15) *(967/3) = \$107
Winter Quarter Degree Stipend	(5/15) *(967/3) = \$107
•	
Spring Quarter Degree Stipend	(5/15) *(967/3) = \$107

^{*}Percentage of full-time is based on 15 credits per academic quarter for all faculty outside of nursing. Nursing is based on 12 credits quarterly.

APPENDIX B



RTC 12002.01

	TRU	CTIO	N/A	CAD	EMIC	CAL	END/	AR 20	24-2	5										
III '	Y 202	es acacas				(18)		UST					(11)	SEP	TEM	BER	2024		(16	3/11)
S	M	Т	w	т	F	S	S	M	T	w	т	F	S	S	М	T	W	т	F	
0	1	2	3	4	5	6		IVI	•	••	1	2	3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
7	8	9	10	11	12	13	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	8	9	10	11	12	13	14
	27.00	, . .	(0.00			10012000	1					0.00		2000	10000	1000000	29. 77	10.000	0.500	
14	15	16	17	18	19	20	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	15	16	17	18	19	20	2
21	22	23	24	25	26	27	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	22	23	24	25	26	27	28
28	29	30	31				25	26	27	28	29	30	31	29	30					
		D 00	0.4				NO	/= n a =		2004			-	DE0			2004			
	OBE			_		1/22)		EMB			_	17	8)			ER 2				5/2)
S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S	S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S	S	М	Т	W	T	F	S
		1	2	3	4	5						1	2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
6	7	8	9	10	11	12	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	8	9	10	11	12	13	14
13	14	15	16	17	18	19	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	15	16	17	18	19	20	2
20	21	22	23	24	25	26	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	22	23	24	25	26	27	28
27	28	29	30	31			24	25	26	27	28	29	30	29	30	31				
	5.5.5																			
JAN	UAR	Y 202	25		(20	/19)	FEB	RUA	RY 2	025		(19	/18)	MAF	RCH 2	2025			(19	9/16)
S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S	S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S	S	M	Т	W	T	F	S
			1	2	3	4							1							1
5	6	7	8	9	10	11	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
12	13	14	15	16	17	18	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
19	20	21	22	23	24	25	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	16	17	18	19	20	21	22
26	27	28	29	30	31	20	23	24	25	26	27	28	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
20	21	20	29	30	31		23	24	25	20	21	20		30	31	25	20	21	20	23
A DD	IL 20	25			14	18)	ВЛАХ	202	5			(21	/19)	=	E 20	25			/10	9/16)
S	M	T	W	т	F	S	S	M	Т	w	Т	F	S	S	M	T	w	Т	F	,, 10) S
			••	3	4	5			·	•••	1	2	3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
		1	2									~	0	3.13	_		-	9	0	-
		1	2		200700		Α.	5	6	7	0	0	10	0	0	10	11	12	12	1
6	7	8	9	10	11	12	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	8	9	10	11	12	13	14
6 13	7	8 15	9 16	10 17	11 18	12 19	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	15	16	17	18	19	20	2
6 13 20	7 14 21	8 15 22	9 16 23	10	11	12	11 18	12 19	13 20	14 21	15 22	16 23	17 24	15 22	16 23					
6 13	7	8 15	9 16	10 17	11 18	12 19	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	15	16	17	18	19	20	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28	8 15 22 29	9 16 23 30	10 17 24	11 18	12 19	11 18	12 19	13 20	14 21	15 22	16 23	17 24	15 22	16 23	17	18	19	20	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21	8 15 22 29	9 16 23 30	10 17 24	11 18 25	12 19 26	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27	14 21	15 22 29	16 23 30	17 24 31	15 22 29	16 23 30	17 24	18	19	20	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28	8 15 22 29	9 16 23 30	10 17 24	11 18 25	12 19	11 18 25	12 19	13 20 27	14 21	15 22	16 23 30	17 24	15 22 29	16 23	17 24	18	19	20	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28	8 15 22 29	9 16 23 30	10 17 24	11 18 25	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1	11 18 25	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	16 23 30	17 24 31 01/06-0 04/07-0	15 22 29	16 23 30	17 24	18 25	19	20	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28	8 15 22 29 NT I	9 16 23 30 DATE	10 17 24	11 18 25	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1	11 18 25 8/15 2/03	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	16 23 30 R G	17 24 31 01/06-0 04/07-0	15 22 29 3/24 6/24	16 23 30	17 24	18 25 Feb 5	19 26	20	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 ORTA	8 15 22 29 NT I	9 16 23 30 DATE	10 17 24	11 18 25	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1	11 18 25 8/15 2/03	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	16 23 30 R G	01/06-0 04/07-0	15 22 29 3/24 6/24	16 23 30	17 24	18 25 Feb 5 Feb 1	19 26	20	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 ORTA	8 15 22 29 ANT I	9 16 23 30 DATE	10 17 24 S SUMM FALL	11 18 25	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 16	11 18 25 8/15 2/03	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	16 23 30 R G * Advisi Presid Gradir	01/06-0 04/07-0 ng Day	15 22 29 3/24 6/24	16 23 30 53 days	17 24	18 25 Feb 5	19 26	20	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 ORTA	8 15 22 29 NT I	9 16 23 30 DATE	10 17 24 S SUMM FALL	11 18 25 ER	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 16 Sept 2 0 Sept 1 Sept 9	11 18 25 8/15 2/03 6-Sept 6	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	R G Advisi Presid Gradir Camp	17 24 31 01/06-0 04/07-0 ent's Day lent's Day us State y Work	15 22 29 3/24 6/24 ay	16 23 30 53 days	17 24	Feb 5 Feb 1 Mar 29 Mar 20 Mar 20 Mar 20	19 26	20 27	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 ORTA	8 15 22 29 NT I endence of Breed Day us Celety Work us State	9 16 23 30 DATE e Day ebration Day e/Fedde	10 17 24 S SUMM FALL	11 18 25 ER	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 16 Sept 2 Sept 1 Sept 9 Sept 1	11 18 25 8/15 2/03 3-Sept 6 0-11 ,12 3	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	R G Advisi Presid Gradir Camp	17 24 31 01/06-0 04/07-0 ng Day us State	15 22 29 3/24 6/24 ay	16 23 30 53 days	17 24	Feb 5 Feb 1 Mar 29 Mar 20 Mar 20 Mar 20	19 26	20 27	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 ORTA Independent of the second o	8 15 22 29 NT I	9 16 23 30 DATE	10 17 24 S SUMM FALL	11 18 25 ER	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 16 Sept 2 0 Sept 1 Sept 9	11 18 25 8/15 2/03 S-Sept 6	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	16 23 30 R G Advisi Presid Gradir Camp Facult Spring	17 24 31 01/06-0 04/07-0 ent's Day lent's Day us State y Work	15 22 29 3/24 6/24 ay	16 23 30 53 days	17 24	Feb 5 Feb 1 Mar 29 Mar 20 Mar 20 Mar 20	19 26 7 5 6 6 7 28-Ap	20 27	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 ORTA Indepe Summ Labor Campine Facult Cadyisi Vetera Thank	8 15 22 29 ANT Learned endence and endence are Breadence Day us Celle y Work us Status	9 16 23 30 DATE	10 17 24 SS SUMM FALL	11 18 25 ER	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 16 Sept 2 Sept 1 Sept 9 Sept 1 Oct 16 Nov 1 ³ Nov 28	11 18 25 8/15 2/03 8-Sept 6 0-11 ,12 3	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	R G Advisi Presid Gradir Camp Facult Spring Advisi Camp	01/06-0 04/07-0 ng Day lent's Day us State y Work I Break	15 22 29 3/24 6/24 ay bration/	16 23 30 53 days 53 days	17 24	Feb 5 Feb 1 Mar 2 Mar 2 Mar 2 March May 7 May 1	19 26 7 5 6 7 7 7 28-Ap	20 27	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 ORTA Indepe Summ Labor Campur Facult Campu Advisii Veterau Gradin	8 15 22 29 ANT I ANT I Day us Cele us Statung Day us Statung Day us Signing Day us Signing Day us Signing Day us Day	9 16 23 30 DATE	10 17 24 SSSSSUMM FALL	11 18 25	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 16 Sept 2 Sept 1 Oct 16 Nov 11 Nov 28 Dec 4	11 18 25 8/15 2/03 8-Sept 6 0-11 ,12 3	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	16 23 30 R G * Advisi Presid Gradir Camp Facult Spring Advisi Camp Memo	17 24 31 01/06-0 04/07-0 ng Day us State y Work I Break ng Day us Cele rial Day	15 22 29 3/24 6/24 ay bration/	16 23 30 53 days 53 days	17 24	18 25 Feb 5 Feb 11 Mar 2: Mar 2: Mar 2: Mar 3: May 7 May 1 May 2	19 26 7 7 7 5 5 3 7 7 28-Ap	20 27	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 ORTA Indepe Summ Labor Campin Advisit Vetera Thank Gradin Campin Cam	8 15 22 29 ANT I and	9 16 23 30 DATE	10 17 24 SS SUMM FALL	11 18 25	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 16 Sept 2 Sept 1 Sept 1 Sept 1 Sept 1 Dec 4 Dec 5	11 18 25 8/15 2/03 8-Sept 6 0-11 ,12 3	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	R G Advisi Presid Gradir Camp Facult Spring Advisi Camp	17 24 31 01/06-0 04/07-0 ng Day us State y Work I Break ng Day us Cele rial Day	15 22 29 3/24 6/24 ay bration/	16 23 30 53 days 53 days	17 24	Feb 5 Feb 1 Mar 2 Mar 2 Mar 2 March May 7 May 1	19 26 7 7 7 5 5 3 7 7 28-Ap	20 27	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 Indept Summ Labor Campi Facult Vetera Thank Gradir Campi Facult	8 15 22 29 ANT I ANT I Day us Cele us Statung Day us Statung Day us Signing Day us Signing Day us Signing Day us Day	9 16 23 30 DATE e Day e Day e/Fede / Break	10 17 24 SSSSSUMM FALL	11 18 25	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 16 Sept 2 Sept 1 Oct 16 Nov 11 Nov 28 Dec 4	11 18 25 8/15 2/03 3-Sept 6 0-11 1,12 3 1 3-29	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	16 23 30 R G * Advisi Presid Gradir Camp Facult Spring Advisi Camp Memo	17 24 31 31 01/06-0 04/07-0 ng Day gent's Day gent's Day y Work Break Break g Day y Work s Day g Day y Work g Day g Day	15 22 29 3/24 6/24 ay bration/	16 23 30 53 days 53 days	17 24	18 25 Feb 5 Feb 11 Mar 2: Mar 2: Mar 2: Mar 3: May 7 May 1 May 2	19 26 7 7 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 19	20 27	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 ORTA Indepe Summ Labor Campin Advisi Vetera Campin Advisi Vetera Market Ma	8 15 22 29 29 ANT I sendencer Brei Day us Statt gg Day us Statt gg Day us Statt gg Day us Statt gg Pay y Work F Break eea's E	9 16 23 30 DATE e Day e/Fede // // Break	10 17 24 SSSSSUMM FALL	11 18 25	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 1f Sept 2 Sept 1 Oct 16 Nov 1 ⁻¹ Nov 1 ⁻¹ Nov 1 ⁻² Dec 6 Dec 9 Jan 1	11 18 25 8/15 2/03 3-Sept 6 0-11 1,12 3 1 3-29	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	R G S * Advisi Camp Memo Junete Gradin Camp Camp Memo Advisi Camp Memo Adv	177 24 31 01/06-0 04/07-0 mg Day us State g Day us State g Break g Day us Cele rial Day enth Day us State g Day us State	15 22 29 3/24 6/24 ay	16 23 30 53 days	17 24 s s s s s	Feb 5 Feb 1 Mar 22 Mar 2 Mar 2 Mar 2 Mar 2 June 2 June 2 June 2	19 26 7 7 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 9 9	20 27	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 Indepe Summ Labor Campu Facult Vetera Gradir Campu Facult Winter Winter Facult Fac	8 15 22 29 ANT I and the series of the seri	9 16 23 30 DATE e Day ak ebration Day / I Break	10 17 24 SUMM FALL SUMM FALL	11 18 25	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 16 Sept 2 Sept 1 Oct 16 Nov 1 ⁻ Nov 28 Dec 5 Dec 6 Dec 9- July 4 July 4 Dec 9- July 4 July 4 Dec 9- July 4 July 4 Dec 9- July 4 July 4 Dec 9- July 4 July 4 July 4 Dec 9- July 4 July 4 July 4 July 4 Dec 9- July 4 July 6 July	11 18 25 25 88/15 2/03 8-Sept 6 0-11 1,12 1 3 3 1 1 3-2-29	12 19 26 29 days 53 days	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN	R G S * Advisi Camp Memo Junete Gradin Camp Camp Memo Advisi Camp Memo Adv	01/06-0 01/06-0 04/07-0 mg Day ent's Dig Day yeng Day yen	15 22 29 3/24 6/24 ay	16 23 30 53 days	17 24 s s s s s	Feb 5 Feb 1 Mar 25 Mar 20 Mar 20 Mar 20 Mar 20 Mary 1 May 3 June 2	19 26 7 7 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 9 9	20 27	2
6 13 20 27	7 14 21 28 Indepe Summ Labor Campu Facult Vetera Gradir Campu Facult Winter Winter Facult Fac	8 15 22 29 ANT I and the control of	9 16 23 30 DATE e Day ak ebration Day // I Break ee/Fedee Day i Day King I	10 17 24 SUMM FALL SUMM FALL	11 18 25 EER	12 19 26 07/08-0 09/16-1 July 4 Aug 1f Sept 2 Sept 1 Oct 16 Nov 1 ⁻¹ Nov 1 ⁻¹ Nov 1 ⁻² Dec 6 Dec 9 Jan 1	11 18 25 18 18 25 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	12 19 26	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29 WINTE SPRIN L DAYS	RGG * Advisi Presid Gradir Camp Facult Spring Camp Memo Junete Gradir Camp	01/06-0 004/07-0 ng Day us Statet y Work Break properties Day y Work Break properties Day y work properties Day y work properties Day y work	15 22 29 3/24 6/24 ay	16 23 30 53 days	17 24 s s s s s	Feb 5 Feb 1 Mar 2 Mar 2 Mar 2 Mar 2 Mar 2 June 2 June 2	19 26 7 7 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 9 9	20 27	2





RTC 12002.01

		COL	_EGE®)																120
INS	TRU	СТІС	N / A	CAE	ЕМІ	C CA	LEND	AR 2	2026	-27										
JUL	Y 202	26				(15)	AUG	UST	202	6			(14)	SEP	TEM	BER	2026	3	(13	3/8)
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
			1	2	3	4							1			1	2	3	4	5
5	6	7	8	9	10	11	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
12	13	14	15	16	17	18	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	13	14	15	16	17	18	19
19	20	21	22	23	24	25	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	20	21	22	23	24	25	26
26	27	28	29	30	31		23	24	25	26	27	28	29	27	28	29	30			
							30	31												
OCI	ГОВЕ	D 20	26		(22	/21)	NOVEMBER 2026 (18)						DECEMBER 2026 (9/6)							
S	M	T	W	т	(22 F	./21) S	S	M	T	2020 W	т	F	S	S	M	T	W	т	F	S
	IVI	•	٧٧	1	2	3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		IVI	1	2	3	4	5
4	5	6	7	8	9	10	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
11	12	13	14	15	16	17	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	13	14	15	16	17	18	19
18	19	20	21	22	23	24	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	20	21	22	23	24	25	26
		27		29	30	31	29	30	24	25	20	21	20						25	20
25	26	21	28	29	30	31	29	30						27	28	29	30	31		
	IUAR			_		19)		RUA			_	•	/18)		RCH			_	•	/16)
S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S	S	M	Т	W	T	F	S	S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S
					1	2		1	2	3	4	5	6		1	2	3	4	5	6
3	4	5	6	7	8	9	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
10	11	12	13	14	15	16	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
17	18	19	20	21	22	23	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
24	25	26	27	28	29	30	28							28	29	30	31			
31																				
APR	RIL 20	27			(2	20)	MAY	202	7			(20	/18)	JUNE 2027			(18			/15)
S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S	S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S	S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S
				1	2	3							1			1	2	3	4	5
		_	7	8	9	10	2			_	_	7	8	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
4	5	6	7	0	_		_	3	4	5	6	- 1	0							40
4 11	5 12	13	/ 14	15	16	17	9	3 10	4 11	12	6 13	14	15	13	14	15	16	17	18	19
	_	-								_		-		13 20	14 21	15 22	16 23	17 24	18 25	26
11	12	13	14	15	16	17	9	10	11	12	13	14	15							
11 18	12 19	13 20	14 21	15 22	16 23	17	9	10 17	11 18	12 19	13 20	14 21	15 22	20	21	22	23			
11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29	16 23	17	9 16 23	10 17 24	11 18	12 19	13 20	14 21	15 22	20	21	22	23			
11 18 25	12 19	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29	16 23 30	17 24	9 16 23 30	10 17 24 31	11 18 25	12 19	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29	20 27	21 28	22 29	23			
11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27	14 21 28	15 22 29	16 23 30	17	9 16 23 30	10 17 24	11 18 25	12 19	13 20	14 21 28	15 22	20 27	21	22 29	23			
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT	13 20 27 ANT	14 21 28 DAT	15 22 29 ES	16 23 30	17 24 07/13-0 09/21-1	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08	10 17 24 31 29 days 53 days	11 18 25	12 19	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	14 21 28	15 22 29 01/04-0 04/05-0	20 27 27	21 28 53 days	22 29	23 30	24		
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT/	13 20 27 ANT	14 21 28 DATI	15 22 29 ES	16 23 30	17 24 07/13-0 09/21-1	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08	10 17 24 31 29 day: 53 day: NON-IN y 7/3)	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	14 21 28 R G	15 22 29 01/04-0	20 27 27 26/22	21 28 53 days	22 29	23 30 Feb 3	24		
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT	13 20 27 ANT endender Bre Day	14 21 28 DATI	15 22 29 ES SUMM FALL	16 23 30	17 24 07/13-0 09/21-1 July 4 Aug 2' Sept 7	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08 (Off Data)	10 17 24 31 29 day: 53 day: NON-IN y 7/3)	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	14 21 28 R G S* Advisi Presio	15 22 29 01/04-0 04/05-0 ing Day	20 27 3/22 6/22	21 28 53 day:	22 29	23 30 Feb 3 Feb 19 Mar 23	24		
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT	13 20 27 ANT endender Bre Day us Cele	14 21 28 DATI	15 22 29 ES SUMM FALL	16 23 30	17 24 07/13-0 09/21-1 July 4 Aug 2' Sept 7	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08 (Off Da 1-Sept 1	10 17 24 31 29 day: 53 day: NON-IN y 7/3)	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	14 21 28 R G G S* Advisi Presio	15 22 29 01/04-0 04/05-0 ing Day dent's D	20 27 3/22 6/22 ay	21 28 53 day:	22 29	23 30 Feb 3 Feb 19 Mar 23 Mar 24	24 5 3 4		
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT	13 20 27 ANT endender Bre Day us Celey Work	14 21 28 DATI	15 22 29 ES SUMM FALL	16 23 30	17 24 07/13-0 09/21-1 July 4 Aug 2' Sept 7	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08 (Off Da 1-Sept 1	10 17 24 31 29 day: 53 day: NON-IN y 7/3)	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	R G S* Advisi Presid Gradii Camp	15 22 29 01/04-0 04/05-0 ing Day	20 27 3/22 6/22 ay e/Feder Day	21 28 53 day:	22 29	23 30 Feb 3 Feb 19 Mar 23 Mar 24 Mar 25	24 5 3 4	25	
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT Independent Summer Labor Camp Facult Camp Advisi	13 20 27 ANT endender Bre Day us Cele y Work us Sta	DATI ce Day ak cebratio C Day te/Fede	15 22 29 ES SUMM FALL	16 23 30	07/13-0 09/21-1 July 4 Aug 22 Sept 7 Sept 1 Sept 1 Oct 21	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08 (Off Dat 1-Sept 1 5-16 14, 17 8	10 17 24 31 29 day: 53 day: NON-IN y 7/3)	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	14 21 28 R G Advisi Presic Gradii Camp Facult Spring	01/04-0 04/05-0 ing Day ing Day us Stat ty Work g Break	20 27 3/22 6/22 ay e/Fedel	21 28 53 day:	22 29	23 30 Feb 3 Feb 19 Mar 23 Mar 24 Mar 29	24 5 3 4 5, 26 9-Apr 2	25	
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT/ Independent Summer Labor Camp Facult Camp Advisi Vetera	13 20 27 ANT endendender Bre Day us Cele y Work us Sta	14 21 28 DATI ce Day ak ebratio c Day te/Fede	15 22 29 ES SUMM FALL	16 23 30	07/13-0 09/21-1 July 4 Aug 2' Sept 7 Sept 1 Sept 1 Oct 21 Nov 1'	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08 (Off Da 1-Sept 1 5-16 14, 17 8	10 17 24 31 29 day: 53 day: NON-IN y 7/3)	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	14 21 28 R G G G Gradii Campp Facult Spring	01/04-0 04/05-0 ing Day dent's D ng Day bus Stat ty Work g Break	20 27 3/22 6/22 ay e/Feder Day	21 28 53 day:	22 29 ss s	23 30 Feb 3 Feb 18 Mar 23 Mar 29 Mar 29	24 5 3 4 5, 26 9-Apr 2	25	
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT Independent of the summer Labor Camp Facult Camp Advisi Vetera Thank Gradin	13 20 27 ANT endendencer Bree Day us Celry us State ng Day ans Day assiving ng Day assiving ng Day	14 21 28 DAT DAT DAT DAT DAT DAT DAT DA	15 22 29 ES SUMMINIONINIONINIONINIONINIONINIONINIONIN	16 23 30 30 EER	07/13-0 09/21-1 July 4 Aug 2' Sept 7 Sept 1 Sept 2 Sept 1 Oct 21 Nov 12 Dec 9	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08 (Off Da 1-Sept 1 5-16 14, 17 8	10 17 24 31 29 day: 53 day: NON-IN y 7/3)	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	14 21 28 R G Advisi Presic Gradii Camp Facult Spring Advisi Camp Memc	15 22 29 01/04-0 04/05-0 ing Day ous Stat by Work g Break ing Day ous Celebrial Day	20 27 3/22 6/22 ay e/Feder Day	21 28 53 day:	22 29 ss s	23 30 Feb 3 Feb 1: Mar 2: Mar 2: Mar 2: May 5: May 1: May 3	24 5 3 4 5, 26 9-Apr 2	25	
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT Indeper Summ Labor Camp Facult Camp Advisi Vetera Thank Gradir Camp	13 20 27 ANT andendence Bree Bree Day us Celle y Work us Status ng Day assgiving ng Day us Status status	14 21 28 DATI DA	15 22 29 ES SUMM FALL	16 23 30 30 EER	07/13-0 09/21-1 July 4 Aug 2 Sept 7 Sept 1 Oct 21 Nov 1 Nov 2 Dec 9 Dec 10	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08 (Off Da 1-Sept 1 5-16 14, 17 8	10 17 24 31 29 day: 53 day: NON-IN y 7/3)	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	14 21 28 R G Advisi Presic Gradii Camp Facult Spring Advisi Camp Memc Junet	15 22 29 01/04-0 04/05-0 ing Day us Stat ty Work g Break ing Day us Cele prial Day eenth	20 27 3/22 6/22 ay e/Feder Day	21 28 53 day:	22 29 ss s	23 30 Feb 3 Feb 1: Mar 2: Mar 2: Mar 2: May 5 May 3 June 2:	24 55 33 44 55, 26 9-Apr 2	25	
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT Indepersum Labor Camp Facult Camp Advisi Vetera Thank Gradir Camp Facult	13 20 27 ANT endendencer Bree Day us Celry us State ng Day ans Day assiving ng Day assiving ng Day	14 21 28 DATI Line Day Lee Day Lee Day Lee Fede Lee Day	15 22 29 ES SUMMINIONINIONINIONINIONINIONINIONINIONIN	16 23 30 30 EER	07/13-0 09/21-1 July 4 Aug 2: Sept 7 Sept 1 Oct 21 Nov 1: Nov 26 Dec 9 Dec 1:0	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08 (Off Da 1-Sept 1 5-16 14, 17 8	10 17 24 31 29 day: 53 day: NON-IN y 7/3)	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	RGGSAdvisional Advisional Advisio	15 22 29 01/04-0 04/05-0 ing Day ous Stat by Work g Break ing Day ous Celebrial Day	20 27 3/22 6/22 ay e/Fedel Day	21 28 53 days	22 29 ssss	23 30 Feb 3 Feb 1: Mar 2: Mar 2: Mar 2: May 5: May 1: May 3	24 55 3 3 4 4 1 1 18 8 23	25	
11 18 25	12 19 26 Independent Summer Labor Campa Advisi Vetera Thank Gradin Campa Facult Wintel New Y	13 20 27 ANT endencer Bre Day us Cele us Stat ng Day ans Da sgring ng Day y Work r Break (ear's I	14 21 28 DATI De Day de Day de Day g Break k Day c Day c Day	15 22 29 ES SUMMMINIONININ-Seeral Track	16 23 30 30 EER	07/13-0 09/21-1 July 4 Aug 2: Sept 7 Sept 1 Sept 1 Oct 21 Nov 1: Nov 26 Dec 9 Dec 10 Dec 14 Jan 1	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08 (Off Da) 1-Sept 1 5-16 14, 17 8	10 17 24 31 29 day: 53 day: NON-IN y 7/3)	11 18 25	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN	R G G Gradin Camp Memc Camp Facult Gradin Camp Facult Spring Memc Camp Facult Gradin Camp Facult Camp	01/04-0 04/05-0 ing Day long D	20 27 3/22 6/22 ay e/Fedel Day	21 28 53 days	22 29 ssss	23 30 Feb 1 Mar 2: Mar 2: May 5 May 3 June 2 June 2 June 2	24 5 5 3 4 4 1 1 1 8 8 3 3 2 4	25	
11 18 25	12 19 26 ORT/ Independent Summ Labor Camp Facult Camp Advisi Vetera Thank Gradir Camp Facult Winter New Y Martin	13 20 27 ANT endender Bree Day us Cell us Star ng Day us Star ng Day us Star y Work y Work r Break	14 21 28 DATI Lee Day ak Lee Day tee/Fede (15 22 29 ES SUMMMINIONININ-Seeral Track	16 23 30 EER	07/13-0 09/21-1 July 4 Aug 2: Sept 7 Sept 1 Oct 21 Nov 1: Nov 26 Dec 9 Dec 1: Dec 1: Dec 1:	9 16 23 30 8/20 2/08 (Off Da 1-Sept 1 5-16 14, 17 8 1 5-27	10 17 24 31 29 days 53 days NON-IR 7 (7/3)	11 18 25 25 NSTRUG	12 19 26	13 20 27 WINTE SPRIN L DAYS	RGGSAdvisional Advisional Advisio	01/04-0 04/05-0 ing Day us Statty Work g Break ing Day us Cele prial Day us Cele prial Day us Statty Work geenth ng Day us Statty Work er Brea	20 27 3/22 6/22 ay e/Fedel Day	21 28 53 days	22 29 ssss	23 30 30 Feb 1! Mar 2: Mar 2: Mar 2: May 5 May 1 June 2 June 2 June 2 June 2	24 55 33 44 55, 26 11 11 18 23	25	

APPENDIX C

RENTON TECHNICAL COLLEGE CREDIT AND LEARNING INCENTIVE PROGRAM

We, the undersigned, on behalf of the Renton Technical College and the Renton Federation of Teachers, hereby agree to participate in the Renton Technical College Credit and Learning Incentive Program in accordance with the provisions described below. Should the Department of Retirement Systems determine that payments made to employees by the College constitute excess compensation under RCW 41.50.150 or other applicable statutes, this Appendix C will be null and void and the parties will renegotiate immediately concerning the amount and mechanics of payment for incentives.

A. Credit Incentive Program

Full-time and Associate faculty are eligible to participate in the Renton Technical College Credit and Learning Incentive Program. Eligible employees may elect to receive a six hundred dollar (\$600) credit incentive for completion of three (3) authorized credits or 30 clock hours taken between July 1 and June 30 of the contract year. Authorized credits are any credits recognized by the College and include the following:

- 1. Three (3) quarter credit hours from an accredited college or university, and a 2.0, C or pass if taking pass/fail option, recorded on a transcript and received by Human Resources no later than June 30 for the prior year;
- Three (3) quarter credit hours from the Center for Innovative Teaching & Learning course
 offerings of Renton Technical College which are presented for college or university credit,
 recorded on a transcript and received by Human Resources no later than June 30 for the prior
 year;
- 3. Thirty (30) clock hours of approved continuing education credits.
- 4. Thirty (30) clock hours of locally approved in-service, if such in-service is qualified and approved by the College.

Courses or clock hours that 1) occurred during paid work time; 2) for which a stipend was received or 3) paid for by the College will not qualify under the credit incentive program. Eligible employees may utilize any combination of offerings under subparagraphs 1 through 4 above (e.g., two college/university quarter credit hours plus ten clock hours of approved continuing education) to satisfy the requirements of this program.

Faculty who fully document the impact of student learning within two academic quarters (not counting summer) will receive an extra incentive of \$100.

All requests under this Appendix must show alignment with the College strategic priorities and describe how the professional development will positively impact student learning. Requests will be approved by the dean.

B. Payment

Following receipt of the official transcripts or other appropriate documentation showing completion of course work, payment due under the Credit Incentive Program will result.

C. The Center for Innovative Teaching & Learning will publish a list of learning opportunities and associated stipends on the College website. Additional opportunities may be provided during the course of the year depending on grant funding. These will be shared with faculty, as appropriate, and posted on the website.

APPENDIX D LIST OF PROGRAMS

Full-time Instructional Programs & Professional Services

Accounting Programs

Aerospace and Industrial Production Technologies

Anesthesia Technologist

Associate Degree Registered Nurse

Auto Body Repair & Refinishing

Automotive, Ford ASSET

Automotive Technology

Band Instrument Repair Technology

Central Service Technician

Commercial Building Engineer

Computer Sciences Application Development (BAS)

Computer Network Engineer (BAS)

Cloud Network Technology

Computer Science

College & Career Pathways (not including ELA)

Construction Management

Contemporary Business Administration

Counseling

Counseling/Advising

Culinary Arts

Cyber Security

Dental Assistant

Early Childhood Careers

Engineering Design Technology

English

English Language Acquisition (ELA)

Field Surveying Technician

Land Surveying Technician

Legal Assistant

Librarian

Massage Therapy Practitioner

Mathematics

Mechatronics

Medical Assistant

Medical Assistant - Phlebotomy

Medical Office Programs

Natural Sciences

Nursing Assistant

Pharmacy Technician

Machining Technologies

Professional Baking

Property Maintenance

Social Sciences

Surgical Technologist

Veterinary Assistant

Welding

<u>APPENDIX E</u> DISMISSAL

Section 1 Employee Categories Covered

Dismissal of a faculty member during the term of their appointment shall be governed by the remaining subsections of this Appendix. It is agreed that this Appendix provides the exclusive means for resolving disputes regarding terminations and that such disputes shall not be subject to the grievance procedure of the Agreement.

Section 2 Sufficient Cause for Dismissal of an Employee

A faculty member shall not be dismissed prior to the written terms of the appointment except for sufficient cause.

Sufficient Cause for dismissal of an employee shall include, but be not limited to:

- A. Grounds constituting sufficient cause under RCW 28B.50.862;
- B. Incompetence in the performance of professional duties;
- C. Neglect of duties;
- D. Malfeasance:
- E. Willful violation of college rules and regulations;
- F. Gross misconduct;
- G. Sexual or other harassment;
- H. Abuse of students or staff;
- I. Theft or embezzlement of state property; or,
- J. Willful insubordination.

Misconduct of a potentially criminal or otherwise unlawful nature may be referred to the appropriate law enforcement authorities.

Section 3 Composition of the Dismissal Review Committee

A five (5) member Dismissal Review Committee created for the express purpose of hearing dismissal cases shall be established. The members shall include one administrator, one full-time student and three tenured faculty members.

The administrator shall be selected by the President or designee.

The student member, who shall be a full-time student, will be selected by the student body in such manner as the students shall determine or, in the absence of such action by the student body, by the College President or designee and the Union President or designee.

The three (3) tenured faculty members shall be duly elected at a general membership meeting of the Union. The faculty members for the Dismissal Review Committee shall be elected no later than October 15 of any academic year and will serve a one (1) year term. The Union will also elect three (3) tenured faculty members as alternates.

The Dismissal Review Committee will select one of its members to serve as chair. In no event shall a member of the committee sit in judgment of her/his own case, or in instances of potential conflict of interest.

In the event of a vacancy on the committee, a replacement shall be selected within (15) calendar days of the vacancy in the manner outlined above. It is understood and agreed that it may not always be practicable to identify a student member who is willing and able to serve, and the committee may proceed in the absence of the student member.

Section 4 Preliminary Proceedings

Except in the case of reductions-in-force (which are governed by Article 13 of this Agreement), the President or designee shall provide written reasons for considering the potential dismissal of a faculty member and shall provide an opportunity for the faculty member to meet informally with the President or designee to discuss the concerns. The faculty member may have a union representative present at this meeting. The matter may be informally resolved at this point by mutual agreement. The President shall place the letter and/or any resolution agreement in the faculty member's personnel file unless mutually agreed otherwise.

Section 5 Formal Procedures Relating to Dismissal of an Employee

If the College President determines that dismissal proceedings should be initiated, the President shall specify in writing the alleged grounds constituting sufficient cause for dismissal and shall provide such written notice to the faculty member and to the Union. The notice shall include:

- A. A statement that the faculty member has a right to a hearing (the hearing must be held on not less than fifteen (15) calendar days' written notice).
- B. A statement of legal authority and jurisdiction under which the hearing is to be held.
- C. A reference to the particular College rules or policies that are involved.
- A summary stating with reasonable particularity the alleged facts constituting the grounds for dismissal.

The faculty member shall have fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of the notice of dismissal to request a hearing by providing written notice of the request to the College President. The faculty member's failure to request a hearing within such time shall constitute the faculty member's acceptance of dismissal and waiver of any right to a hearing. The decision of a faculty member not to request a hearing, or the faculty member's failure to request a hearing, shall be confirmed in writing by the College President to the faculty member, the Union, and the Board of Trustees.

Section 6 Procedural Rights

A faculty member who timely requests a hearing shall be entitled to one formal adjudicative proceeding conducted in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act, <u>RCW 34.05</u>, and shall have the following procedural rights:

- A. The right to confront and cross-examine witnesses, provided that, when a witness cannot appear and compelling reasons exist, the identity of the witness and a statement of the witness reduced to writing shall be disclosed to the faculty member prior to the hearing.
- B. The right to be free from compulsion to divulge information which the faculty member could not be compelled to divulge in a criminal proceeding.
- C. The right to be heard in the faculty member's own defense and to present witnesses, testimony and evidence on all issues involved.
- D. The right to the assistance of the hearing officer in securing the witnesses and evidence pursuant to RCW 34.05.
- E. The right to a representative of her or his choosing who may appear and act on the faculty member's behalf at the hearing.
- F. The right to have witnesses sworn and testify under oath.

Section 7 Conduct of Formal Hearing

A. Appointment of Hearing Officer. Upon receipt of a timely request for a hearing, the College President shall notify the Board and request that the Board appoint an impartial and neutral hearing officer. The hearing officer shall be a member in good standing of the Washington State Bar Association and not a member of this institution or the Assistant Attorney General currently assigned to the College.

- B. Responsibilities of Hearing Officer. It shall be the role of the hearing officer to conduct the hearing in accordance with RCW 34.05 and this Agreement. The duties of the hearing officer include but are not limited to:
 - 1. Administering oaths and affirmations, examining witnesses and receiving evidence;
 - 2. Issuing subpoenas;
 - 3. Taking or causing depositions to be taken;
 - 4. Regulating the course of the hearing;
 - 5. Holding conferences for the settlement or simplification of the issues by consent of the parties;
 - 6. Disposing of procedural requests or similar matters:
 - 7. Making all rulings regarding the evidentiary issues presented during the course of the Dismissal Review Committee hearing;
 - 8. Appointing a court reporter, who shall operate at the direction of the hearing officer and shall record all testimony, receive all documents and other evidence introduced during the course of the hearing, and record any other matters related to the hearing as directed by the hearing officer;
 - 9. Assisting the Dismissal Review Committee in the conduct of its responsibilities;
 - Allowing the Dismissal Review Committee to hear testimony from all interested parties, including but not limited to employees and students, and reviewing any evidence offered by same;
 - 11. Preparing proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law and a recommended decision. Within thirty (30) calendar days after the conclusion of the formal hearing, or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable, the written recommendation of the hearing officer will be presented to the College President, the Dismissal Review Committee, the affected faculty member, the Union, and the Board;
 - 12. Being responsible for preparing and assembling a record for review by the Board which shall include: all pleadings, motions and rulings; all evidence received or considered; a statement of any matters officially noticed including any refusal to testify on the part of any affected employee; all questions and offers of proof, objections and rulings thereon; proposed findings, conclusions of law and a recommended decision; and the recommendations of the Dismissal Review Committee;
 - 13. Assuring that a transcription of the hearing is made and that the record or any part thereof is transcribed and furnished to any party to the hearing upon request and payment of costs;
 - 14. Deciding, in accordance with RCW 34.05 and in consultation with the Dismissal Review Committee, whether the hearing or any part of the hearing shall be closed to the public or whether particular persons shall be permitted or excluded from attendance.
- C. Responsibilities of Dismissal Review Committee. The responsibilities of the committee shall be to:
 - 1. Receive guidance from the hearing officer regarding the conduct of its responsibilities;
 - 2. Review the case of the proposed dismissal;
 - 3. Attend the hearing and, at the discretion of the hearing officer, call and/or examine any witnesses;
 - 4. Hear testimony from all interested parties, including but not limited to, other employees and students, and review any evidence offered by same;
 - 5. Arrive at its recommendations in conference on the basis of the evidence received into the record of the hearing. Within twenty-five (25) calendar days after the conclusion of the formal hearing, or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable, the written recommendations of the

committee will be presented to the hearing officer, the faculty member, the College President, and the Union.

- D. Final Decision by the Board. The case shall be reviewed by the Board as follows:
 - 1. Board review shall be based on the record of the hearing and on any record made before the Board, except that the Board shall not receive new evidence;
 - 2. The Board may permit an opportunity for oral or written argument or both by the parties or their representatives;
 - 3. The final decision to dismiss or not to dismiss shall rest, with respect to both the facts and the decision, with the Board after giving reasonable consideration to the recommendations of the Dismissal Review Committee and the hearing officer. The Dismissal Review Committee's recommendations and the findings, conclusions and recommended decision of the hearing officer shall be advisory only and in no respect binding in fact or law upon the decision maker, the Board. The Board shall, within a reasonable time following the conclusion of its review, notify the affected faculty member in writing of its review decision and final order. If applicable, the final order shall specify the effective date of dismissal.
- E. Effective Date of Dismissal. The effective date of a dismissal for sufficient cause shall be such date subsequent to notification of the Board's review decision and final order as determined at the discretion of the Board.
- F. Appeals from Final Decision.
 - 1. Petition for Reconsideration. The faculty member may petition the Board for reconsideration of its review decision and final order by filing a petition for reconsideration within fifteen (15) calendar days after service of the final order. The filing of a petition for reconsideration is not a prerequisite for seeking judicial review, but the time for filing a petition for judicial review does not commence until the Board disposes of the petition for reconsideration. The petition for consideration shall be deemed denied if within twenty (20) calendar days from the date the petition is filed the Board neither disposes of the petition nor serves written notice of the date by which the petition will be acted upon.
 - Petition for Judicial Review. The faculty member may petition for judicial review of the Board's review decision and final order by filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) calendar days after service of the Board's final order in accordance with the filing requirements of the Administrative Procedure Act, RCW 34.05.
 - 3. Petition for Stay. The filing of a petition for reconsideration or petition for judicial review shall not stay the effectiveness of the Board's decision and final order. The faculty member may petition the Board to stay the effectiveness of its final order by filing such petition within fifteen (15) calendar days after service of the order, unless otherwise provided in the final order.

Section 8 Suspension

Suspension by the College President during the administrative proceedings (prior to the final decision of the Board) is justified if immediate harm to the affected faculty member or others, or to the educational program, is threatened by their continuance. Any such suspension shall be with pay unless reassignment has been offered to and refused by the employee.

Section 9 Publicity

Except for such simple announcements as may be required covering the time of the hearing and similar matters, no public statements about the case shall be made by the employee, the Dismissal Review Committee, administrative officers, the Union or the Board until all administrative proceedings and appeals have been completed.

Section 10 Time Limits

The term "days" as used in this Appendix means calendar days except where working days are specified. Working days are those days on the College's instructional calendar. In computing any time prescribed or allowed, the day of the act or event from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not be

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN RENTON TECHNICAL COLLEGE AND THE RENTON FEDERATION OF TEACHERS

Renton Technical College ("College") and the Renton Federation of Teachers, Local 3914 ("Union") agree that faculty evaluations are required under RCW 28B.50.856 and 28B.50.872;

And the College and the Union agree that evaluations based on consistent standards guide the improvement of instructional skills, recognizes and reinforces instructional excellence, helps faculty focus on student outcomes, and can assist in the development of professional development;

And the College and the Union agree that the updated skill standards as set forth by the SBCTC will provide necessary structure while incorporating mission critical values of equity, inclusion and diversity;

The College and the Union agree that:

- 1) A Skill Standards Task Force consisting of key stakeholders from RFT and Instructional leadership, and other college administration is in place by October 1, 2024, to incorporate the updated skill standards into the faculty evaluation documents no later than March 15, 2025.
- 2) All faculty will be evaluated based on these modified skill standards effective Fall Quarter 2025.

Signature Page

Signed this 12 day of June, 2024

Fried X Jakami

Board of Trustees Frieda Takamura, Chair

Renton Technical College Dr. Yoshiko Harden, President Renton Federation of Teachers Donna Maher, President

Renton Federation of Teachers

Cheryl Stover

Renton Federation of Teachers

Sheila May-Farley

Renton Federation of Teachers

Michele Lesmeister

Renton Federation of Teachers

Elisa Westcrook

Renton Federation of Teachers

Fatih Killi